BEFORE THE I'UBLIC SERVICE COMM*SIUN
v |
STATE OF FLORIDA LG

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY

FOR NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC.
10 ACQUIRE CERTAIN ASSETS OF
UNIVERSAL NETWORK SERVICES

OF FLORIDA, INC.

7

CASE NI?BIIIPZRM

APPLICATION

Network Long Distance, Inc. (*Network™), pursuant to the applicable Statutes of Flonda and
the Commission's Rules and Regulations currently in effect and/or subsequently enacted. hereby
requests Commission approval of a transaction whereby Network will acquire certain assets,
including customer accounts, of Umversal Network Services of Flonda, Inc, (“UNS"). Network
proposes 1o acquire these assets and customer accounts and 1o begin to provide long distance service
1o the Customers of UNS under the Centificate of Public Convenience and Necessity previously
1ssued to Network.,

As will be described in detail below, Networ' has entered into an agrecment to purchase
specified assets of UNS, including its customer accounts, pending the required regulatory approvals
Commission approval of the proposed purchase of assets, including customer accounts. will result
i cost savings because of discounts on quantity ordering of materials and services and i
streamline the level of service for all involved customers. At the same time, approval of the proposed

purchase and transfer of customer accounts will not in any way be detn mental to the public interests

' Both Network and UNS are presently certificated carriers in the State of Florida, actively engaged

in the business of selling loug distance and other enhanced telecommunications services
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of the State of Florida because the customers of both Network and l& will continue to receive the
same high quality service presently rendered to them and neither party to the transaction between
Network and UNS will be given undue advantage over the other party. Additionally, Network will
possess a greater customer account base as the result of the proposed purchase of assets, and will
thus be a stronger carrier to provide high quality service to all customers presently serviced by both
Network and UNS.

In support of this Application, Applicant shows the following:
l. THE PARTIES

i Network Long Distance, Inc. 15 a publicly held Delaware corporation whose principle
offices are located at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801, Network is a non-dominant
carrier that resells the domestic and international long distance service purchased from various
facilitics based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier pol cies.

2 Network is authorized by the FCC to offer domestic interstate and international
services in all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carmier. Network
currently originates interstate traffic in forty nine (49) states, and provides intrastate service, pursuant
to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in forty nine (49)
states. Network is a certificated carrier in the State of "lorida ’

3 Universal Network Services of Florida, Inc. is a privately held Nevada corporation
whose principle offices are located at Two Corporate Plaza, Suite 200, Newport Buach, Califormu

92660. UNS is a non-dominant carrier that resells domestic and international long distance service

! In Florida, Network provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant to Certificate of
frublic Convenience and Necessity Number 3178, Sce matter entitled *Application Form for Authonty to Provide
Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of Flonda,” Docket Number 030249-Tl, Order Number
PSC-93-0857-FOF-TI, effective date June 30, 1993,
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trom various facilities based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies. UNS 1
4 certificated carrier in the State of Flonda. '
4 Pursuant 1o the transaction which is the subject of this Application, Network will
acquire, for consideration, certain of the assets of UNS, including the customer accounts of UNS*
3 Pursuant to the transaction which is the subject of this Application, UNS will retin
its Centificate of Public Convenience and Necessity issued to it from the State of Florida.
6. As a company providing intrastate telecommunications service directly in forty nine
(49) states, with annual operating revenues of approximately thirty two mi'¥an (332,000,000
dollars, Network is well-qualified to consummate the transaction which is the subject of this
Application. Current financial information for Network is attached hereto as Exhibit "B” '
II. DESIGNATED CONTACT
7. The designated contact for questions concerning this Application 1s
Leon L. Nowalsky, Isquire
Nowalsky & Bronston
3900 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1275

Metairie, Louisicna 70002
(504) 832-1984

- Universal Network Services of Flonda, Inc. 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Universal Network
Services, Inc., also a Nevada corporation. In Florida, UNS provides intrastate telecommunications services pussuant
to Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity Number 3578, See matter entitled “Application Form for
Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of Florida,” Docket Number
940559-T1, Order Number PSC-94-1032, efTective date September 14, 1994

* See Asscl Purchase Agreement, attached as Exhibit “A ™

. Exhibit "B is the most recent Form 10-k submitted to the SEC by Network for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 1995
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8 Copies of such correspondence should also be sent to

Mike Ross, President
Network Long Distance, Inc.
525 Flonda Street

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801
(504) 343-3125

1. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION FOR THE
PURCHASE OF ASSETS FROM UNS TO NETWORK

8 In the past several years, Network has acquired the assets of several companies tha
p-ovide intrastate telecommunication services pursuant to Certificates of Public Convenience and
Necessity in various states. Network has attempted to consolidate the customer accounts of these
various other companies in order to create a single, larger long distance carrier operating in all filt
(50) states and the District of Columbia. By virtue of these transactions, Network will realize
significant economic, marketing and administrative efficiencies

10.  Applicant accordingly proposes a transaction with UNS whereby Network will

purchase the following assets of UNS:

(a) All Qualified Customer Accounts (as such term is described in Exhubit "A7),
including all custemer lists, mailing lists, books, records, files, data, letters
of agency and similar items related t the Qualified Customer Accounts.

(b) All accounts receivable associated with and derived from the Qualiticd
Customer Accounts and other mutually agreed to accounts receivable,

(¢)  All of UNS' nights under any agreements, application torms, term contracts,
letters of agency and all other contractual insiruments related to the Qualificd
Customer Accounts, including, but not limited to UNS' nght to assent claims
and take other rightful action with respect to breaches, defaults and other
violations of such Customer Contracts;

(d) All customer and other deposits held or made by UNS related to the Qualified
Customer Accounts; and

(e) All T-1's and other equipment, excluding dialers, currently used by or for the
customers relative to the Qualified Customer Accounts,
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I Due consideration will be made by Network to UNS in exchange for the purchase of
those assets identified above. *

12 All assets of UNS not identified in paragraph 11 above will be retained by and remann
the property of UNS, including the Cenificate of Public Convenience and Necessity rssued by the
State of Flonda.

13 Following consummation of the transaction discussed above, Network will transter
all of the present customer accounts of UNS to Network, and service these customers through and
pursuant to the Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity presently utilized by Network in it
service of its existing customers in this state.’

14 The technical, managenial and financial personnel of Network will remain the same
after the transaction, and will serve both the existing Network customers and the transferred UNS
customers with the high level of expertise which now collectively operates this national corporation

IV, PUBLI? INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS

15 Critical to the proposed transaction and consolidation of customer accounts 1s the
need to ensure the continuation of high quality service to all customers currently served by both
Network and UNS. The proposed ransaction will serve the public interest for the followang reasons
6.  Farst, it will enable Network to provide a streamlined level of service for all involved

customers by creating a single, larger, national operation to provide long distance service to the

¢ Note that the exact financial figures have been deleted from Exhubit "A”. Should this Commussion

desire 1o review the financial terms of the proposed transaction, such materials will be provided to this Commussion
for 1n camera inspection.

r
Upon consummation of the proposed transaction, Network intends to notify all current end users of

LINS of the event and also of any change in rates due to the alignment of two or more different rate products into a
single rate product for common services, by cither a separate mailing or by a bill inscr. To the extent that any
present UNS rate products are not included in Network's Tariffs, Network will amend its Tariffs accordingly. As
such, the transaction should not cause any inconvenience or confusion to the pre-existing customers of either UNS o
Metwork
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customers in this state as well as other states The transaction will enhance the operating efficiencies
including market efficiencies, of Network

17. Second, it will increase the appeal to present and potential customers because o
Network's larger size and greater variety of service offerings as well as enhance the abiliny o
Network to appeal to and serve national accounts

I8 Finally, it will result in cost savings because of discounts on quantity ordering of
matenals and services.

19 Accordingly, the requested transaction and consolidation will serve o create o
heightened level of operating efticiency which generally will serve to enhance the overall capuat
of Network to compete in the marketplace and 10 provide telecommunications s rvices for i greater

number of Florida customers at competitive rates
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June 20, 1996

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS St 7 |

k/a. % { D |
Executive Secretary
Florida Public Service Commission ms'} 1-T1
2450 Schumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Flornida 32399-0850

Re:  Application for Authornty for Network Long Distance, Inc. to
Acquire Specified Assets of Universal Network Services of
Flonda. Inc

Dear Sir

On behalf of Network Long Distance, Inc, enclosed pleass: find an onginal and
thirteen (13) copies of the referenced Application Also enclosed is ¢ check in the amount
of $250.00 to cover the filing fee.

Please date stamp the enclosed extra Application and return to me in the envelope
provided

Please call the undersigned should you have any questions concerning this filing
Thank you for your assistance with this matter

Sincerely,

W tlined

Edward P Gothard
EPG/bg
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

STATE OF FLORIDA

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
FOR NETWORK LONG DISTANCE. INC.

TO ACQUIRE CERTAIN ASSETS OF CASE NUMBER Gy0751-TL
UNIVERSAL NETWORK SERVICES

OF FLORIDA, INC.

APPLICATION

Network Long Distance, Inc. (“Network™), pursuant to the applicable Statutes of F! nda and
the Commission’s Rules and Regulations currently in effect and/or subsequently enacted. hereby
requests Commission approval of a transaction whereby Network w Il acquire certain assels,
ncluding customer accounts, of Universal Network Services of Florida, Inc. ("UNS™). Network
proposes to aequire these assets and customer accounts and to begin to provide long distance service
10 the Customers of UNS under the Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity previously
issucd to Network.

As will be described in detail below, Network he  entered into an agreement to purchase
specified assets of UNS, including its customer accounts, pending the required regulatory approvals '
(ommission approval of the proposed purchase of asscts, including customer accounts, will resuli
in cost savings because of discounts on quantity ordering of materials and scrvices and will
streamline the level of service for all involved customers, At the same time, approval of the proposed

purchase and transfer of customer accounts will not in any way be detrimental 1o the public interests

1 Both Network and UNS are presently certificated carriers in the State of Flonida, actively engaged

i the business of selling long distance and other enhanced telecommunications services
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ol the State of Flonda beeause the customers of both Network and UNS will continue to receive the
same high quality service presently rendered to them and neither party to the transaction between
Network and UNS will be given undue advantage over the other party. Additionally, Network will
possess a greater customer account base as the result of the proposed purchase of assets, and will
thus be a stronger carrier to provide high quality service to all customers presently serviced by both
Network and UNS.,
In support of this Application, Applicant shows the following:
I. THE PARTIES

1 Network Long Distance, Inc. is a publicly held Delaware corporation whose principle
oflices are located at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801. Network is a non-dominant
carrier that resells the domestic and international long distance service purchasel from various
facilities based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies.

2 Network is authorized by the FCC 1o offer domestic interstate and international
services mn all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carrier. Network
currently originates interstate traffic in forty nine (49) states, and provides intrastate service, pursuant
to certification, registration or tarifT requiremen's, or on an unregulated basis, in forty nine (49)
states. Network is a certificated carrier in the State of Florida.”

3 Universal Network Services of Flonda, Inc. is a privately held Nevada corporation
whose principle offices are located at Two Corporate Plaza, Suite 200, Newport Beach, California

02600 TINS 1s a non-dominant carrier that resells domestic and international long distance service

In Florida, Network provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant to Certificate of
Fublic Convenience and Necessity Number 3178, See matter entnled "Apphcation Form for Authority to Provide
Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of Florida,” Docket Number 930249-T1, Order Number
PSC-93-0857-FOF-TI, effective date June 30, 1993,
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from various facilitics based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies. T NS 1
a certificated carrier in the State of Flonda.

4. Pursuant to the transaction which is the subject of this Application, Network will
acquire, for consideration, certain of the assets of UNS, including the customer accounts ol TINS
5. Pursuant to the transaction which is the subject of this Application, UNS will retn
its Centificate of Public Convenience and Necessity issued to it from the State of Florida

6. As a company providing intrastate telecommunications service directly in forty nine
(49) states, with annual operating revenues of approximately thirty two million ($32,000.000)
dollars, Network is well-qualified to consummate the transaction which is th subject of this
Application. Current financial information for Network is attached hereto as Exhibit "B

II. DESIGNATED CONTACT
7. The designated contact for questions concerning this Application 1s:
Leon L. Nowalsky, Esquire
Nowalsky & Bronston
3900 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1275

Metairie, Louisiana 70002
(504) 832-1984

3 Universal Network Services of Florida, Inc 18 a wholly owned subsidiary of Universal Network

Services, Inc., also a Nevada corporation. In Flonida, UNS provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant
to Certilicate of Public Convenience and Necessity Number 3578, Sce matter entitled “Application Form for
Authonily to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of Florida,” Docket Number
440559-T1, Order Number PSC-94-1032, effective date Seplember 14, 1994

' Sce Asset Purchase Agreement, attached as Extubit A "

% Exhibit "B is the most recent Form 10-K submiited to the SEC by Network for the fiscal year

endimg March 31, 1995
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L3 Copies of such correspondence should also be sent to:

Mike Ross, President

Network Long Distance, Inc.
525 Flonda Street

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801
(504) 343-3125

IlI. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION FOR THE
PURCHASE OF ASSETS FROM UNS TO NETWORK

9. In the past several years, Network has acquired the assets of several companices that

provide intrastate telecommunication services pursuant to Centificates of Public Convenience and

Necessily in various states. Network has attempted to consolidate the customer accou 15 of these

vanous other companies in order to create a single, larger long distance carrier operating in all fifty

{50) states and the District of Columbia. By virtue of these transac ions, Network will realize

significant economic, marketing and administrative efliciencies.

10.  Applicant accordingly proposes a transaction with UNS whereby Network will

purchase the following assets of UNS:

(a)

(b)

{c)

(dy

(e)

All Qualified Customer Accounts (as such term is deseribed in Exhibit "A"),
including all customer lists, mailing lists, books, records, files, data, letters
of agency and s..nilar items relate * to the Qualified Customer Accounts;

All accounts receivable associated with and derived from the Qualified
Customer Accounts and other mutually agreed to accounts receivable,

All of UNS' rights under any agreements, application forms, term contracts,
letters of agency and all other contractual instruments related to the Qualified
Customer Accounts, including, but not limited to UNS' night to assert claims
and take other rightful action with respect to breaches, defaults and other
violations of such Customer Contracts;

All customer and other deposits held or made by UNS related to the Qualilicd
Customer Accounts; and

All T-1's and other equipment, excluding dialers, currently used by or for the
customers relative to the Qualified Customer Accounts.
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1 Due consideration will be made by Network to UNS in exchange for the purchase of
those assets identified above. *

12 All assets of UNS not idenufied in paragraph 11 above will be retained by and remain
the property of UNS. including the Centificate of Public Convenience and Necessity issued by the
State of Flonda.

13 Following consummation of the transaction discussed above, Network will transfer
all of the: present customer accounts of UNS to Network, and service these customers through and
pursuant 10 the Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity presently utilized by Network in s
service of its existing customers in this state.”

14. I'he technical, managenal and financial personnel of Network will remain the same
alter the transaction, and will serve both the existing Network custon ers and the transferred UNS
customers with the high level of expertise which now collectively operates this national corporation

IV. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS

15 Critical to the proposed transaction and consolidation of customer accounts 1s the
need to ensure the continuation of high quality service 1o all customers currently served by both
Network and UNS, The proposed transaction will serve the public interest for the following reasons

16 First, it will enable Network to provide a streamlined level of service for all involved

customers by creating a single, larger, national operation to provide long distance service o the

¢ Note that the exact linancial figures have been deleted from Exhibut "A”. Should this Commission

desire 1o review the financial terms of the proposed transaction, such materials will be provided to this Commussion
tor in camera inspection

Upon consummation of the proposed transaction, Network intends Lo notify all current end users of
LINS of the event and also of any change in rates due to the alignment of two or more different rate products mto a
single rate product for common services, by either a separate mailing or by a bill insen. To the extent that any
present LUUNS rate products are not included in Network's Tanffs, Network will amend its TanifTs accordingly As
such, the transaction should not cause any inconvenience or confusion to the pre-existing customers of either UNS o
Network

Page -5-



customers in this state as well as other states. The transaction will enhance the operating efficiencies
including market efficiencies, of Network.

17.  Second, it will increase the appeal to present and potential customers because ol
Network's larger size and greater variety of service offerings as well as enhance the ability ol
Network 1o appeal to and serve national accounts

18.  Finally, it will result in cost savings because of discounts on quantity ordening of
matertals and services,

19.  Accordingly. the requested transaction and consolidation will serve to create o
heightened level of operating efficiency which generally will serve to enhance the overall capacity
of Network to compete in the marketplace and to provide telecommunications services for a preater

number of Florida customers at competitive rates
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V. CONCLUSION
20. WHEREFORE. for the reasons stated herein, Applicant respectfully requests that the
Commission authorize Network and UNS to consummaie the agreement described above, and to
transfer the customer accounts presently serviced under UNS' Certificate to Network, to be serviced
under Network's Certificate,

DATED this [$%day of T urwt . 1996.

Respectfully submitted,

- S VYisroorstrag ~
Leon L. Nowalsky, Eiquire
Nowalsky & Bronston
3900 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1275
Metaine, Louwsiana 70002
(504) 832-1984
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Assel Purchase Agreement. . . ..

Form 10-K Submitted to the
Securities and Exchange Commission
by Network Long Distance, Inc.

for the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 1995 ... ..
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STATE OF LOUISIANA

PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE

VERIFICATION

I, Michael M. Ross, am the President of Network Long Distance. Inc., and am authorized to
make this verification on its behalf. The statements made in the foregoing Application are true of my
own knowledpe, except as to those matters which are therein stated on information and belic?, and
as to those matters | believe them to be true.

By: TR e 0 PR g T P
Name: Michael M. Ross
Title: President

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and Pansh named
above, this 3 day of May, 1996

ldpand, Hrthod

Notary Public

My commission is issued for life
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ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT




ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

into as of the _'H_;_ day of May, 1996 between Network Long Distance, Inc., a Delaware
corporation ("Purchaser”), and Universal Network Services, Inc., a Nevada corporation
("Seller").

THIS ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered i E

WHEREAS, Seller conducts business as a reseller of long distance
lelecomniunications services and has established retail end user customer bases in
various states in the United States; and

WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to purchase selected assets of Seller on the terms
and subject to the conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises,
covenants, representations and warranties herein contained, it is her 2by agreed as follows

(P Sale and Transfer of Assets
1.1 Assets to be Sold

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Seller agrees
to sell. convey, transfer. assign and deliver to Purchaser, and Purchaser agrees to
purchase from Seller, the following selected assels (the “Assets”)

(a)  All Qualified Customer Accounts (as such term i1s defined below),
including all customer hists, mailing lists, books, records, files, data. letters of agency and
similar tems related to the Qualified Customer Accounts:

(b)  All accounts receivable associated with and derived from the Qualified
Customer Accounts and other mutually agreed to accounts receivable

(¢} All of Seller's nghts under any agreements, application forms, term
contracts, letters of agency and all other contractual instrurnents related to the Qualified
Customer Accounts (collectively, the "Customer Contracts”), including but not mited
1o seller's nght to assert claims and take other nghtful actions in respect of breacies.

Initials: Seller Aﬂé
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defaults and other violations of such Customer Contracts; and

(d)  All customer and other deposits held or made by Seller related to the
Qualified Customer Accounts.

1.2 Assets Retained by Seller

All assets of Seller not listed in Section 1.1 are being retained by Seller

2. The Closing
2.1 Place and Date

The closing of the purchase and sale of the Assets (the "Closing”) shall take
place at the offices of Purchaser, 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 708C", at
or before 10:00 a.m., local time, on or before June 1, 1996, provided that the eanditions
set forth in Section 7 hereof have been satisfied. The date of the Closing is herein referred
to as the “Closing Date."

2.2 Transfer of Assets

(a) At the Closing and subject to the terms and coriditions of this
Agreement, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser the following, and simultaneously with such
delivery. Seller shall take such action as may be necessary or reasonably requested by
Purchaser to place Purchaser in possession and control of the Assets.

(i) Such bills of sale, assignments, novation agreements, master
lztters of agency or other instruments of transfer and assignment as shall be necessary to
vest in Purchaser title to the Assets sold and assigned under this Agreement, free and
clear of all lens, claims and encumbrances,

(ii) Copies of resolutions of the Board of Directors of Seller
authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Seller and a
certficate of Seller's secretary, dated the Closing Date, that such resolutions were duly
adopted and are in full force and effect,

(iiiy A current st of the Qualfied Customer Accounts to be
rransferred with an accounts receivable aging report for such Qualified Customer Accounts,

Initials: Seller é%
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(iv)  Such other certificates or other documents or instruments as
the Purchaser or Purchaser's counsel may reasonably request.

(b) At the Closing, as a condition to Seller's obligations under this
Agreement, Purchaser shall deliver to Seller the following:

(i) All instruments as may be reasonably necessary by which
Purchaser assumes the obligations and liabilities to be assumed by it hereunder;

(i) Copies of resolutions of the Board of Directors of Purchaser
authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Purchaser and
a certificate of Purchaser's secretary, dated the Closing Date, that sucn resolutions were
duly adopted and are in full force and effect; and

(iii)  Such other certificates or other documents or instruments as
Seller or Seller's counsel may reasonably request.

2.3 Purchase Price; Adjustments; Payment of the Purchase Price

(a) In full consideration for the Assets to be traaisferred to Purchaser.
Purchaser shall pay to Seller a combination of consideration as discribed below

(b) Definitions:

(i) “Qualified Customer Account" shall mean any end user long
distance telecommunications customer account of Seller which is mutually agreed to by
the parties and which shall be listed in Schedule 2.3(b)(i) to be attached hereto and made
a part hereof at the Closing. Unless mutually agreed to by the parties, a "Qualified
Customer Account” (1) may not be affiliated with Seller in any way, (2) may not be
compnsed. in whole or in part, of any outstanding balance(s) which isfare more than sixty
(60) days past due as of 5:00 p.m. on May 22, 1996; \3) must utilize the Wiltel "Wilmax~
platform for all 1+ and 800 services, be in the process of being transitioned to the Wiltel
mwilmax" platform or there is a high probability of it being converted to the Wiltel “Wilmax"
platform (all of which must be approved by Purchaser, in its sole discretion), (4) must utihize
a travel card platform which is acceptable to Purchaser in its discretion, and (5) must not
have been placed on "credit hold™ or similar restriction by Wiltel or any other underlying
provider

Initials: Seller M
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(ii) "Measurement Period" shall mean the penod commencing
March 1. 1996 and ending April 30, 1996 Attached hereto and made a part hereof as
Schedule 2.3(b)(ii) is a listing of all days included in the Measurement Period a

nd
designated by: (1) date; (2) day of week; and (3) weekday versus wee h’mJ dq/_ /)M
kend.day. A&Q

(iii) “Average Weckday Net Revenue" shall mean the average
daily gross toll usage for each Qualified Customer Account for all weekdays (except
holidays) during the Measurement Period, net of any discounts and minus all other
appropriate deductions, including but not limited to monthly service fees, taxes, pass-
through charges to customers, credits and chargebacks.

(iv) "Average Weekend Day Net Revenue" shall mean the
average deily gross toll usage and pro rata monthly fees for each Qualified Customer
Account for all weekend days (except holidays) during the Measurement Period, net of any
discounts and minus all other appropriate deductions, including but not limited to monthly
service fees, taxes, pass-through charges to customers, credits and chargebacks.

(v)  "Net Toll Usage" shall mean Average Weekday Net Revenue
multiplied by twenty-one (21) plus Average Weekend Day Net Revenue multiplied by nine
{9)

(vi) "Bad Debt Factor" shall mean two per:ent (2%) multiplied by
Net Toll Usage.

(vii) "Customer Base Purchase Price" shall mean Net Toll Usage
less the Bad Debt Factor o NN (Ca2mple if Net Tol
Usage equals $800.000 and the Bad Debt Factor equals $16,000, then the Customer Base
Purchase Price shall equal $5,880,000)

(viii) "Accounts Receivable" shall mean the accounts receivable
as of 11.59 p.m. CST on May 31, 1996 which are associated with and dernived from all
Qualified Customer Accounts,

(1) Accounts Receivable shall be isted, including a complete
and up-to-date aging analysis for each Qualified Customer Account in particular and for
all Qualified Customer Accounts in the aggregate, in Schedule 2.3(b)(viii) which shall be
anached hereto and made a part hereof upon completion of the Accounts Receivable

4
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Reconciliation (as such term is defined below)

(2) Accounts Receivable Reconciliation

(A) Since the actual dollar amount of the Accounts
Receivable cannot be ascertained prior to the Closing, the parties hereby stipulate, for
purposes of determining the consideration to be transferred at the Closing, that Accounts
Receivable equals Net Toll Usage multiplied by a factor of one and twenty-five one-
hundredths (1.25).

(B) The parties shall perform a reconciliation (the
“Accounts Receivable Reconciliation”) of the actual dollar amount of the Accounts
Receivable as of 11:59 p.m. CST on May 31, 1996 within fourteen (14) days of Purchaser's
confirmation of its receipt of all information necessary to perform said Accou. .ts Receivable
Reconciliation.

(C) The Accounts Re:eivable Purchase Price shall
be adjusted in accordance with the results of the Accounts Receivable Reconciliation

(D) Nothing contained in this Section 2 3(b)(vii)(2)
shall be construed to effect a change in the definition of Accounts Receivable Purchase
Price (as such term is defined below).

(ix) "Accounts Receivable Purchase Price” shall mean the
aggregate total of the Accounts Receivable as of the Closing Date multiplied by a factor
of eighty percent (80%)

(x)  “Agent Net Toll Usage" shall mean, stnctly for purposes of the
Customer Evaluation (as such term is defined below), the Net Toll Usage of accounts sold
by Seller's agents subsequent to the Closing on behalf of Purchcser pursuant to
agreements independently negotiated between said agents and Purchaser (hereinafter,
“New Agent Accounts”). For purposes of this paragraph, the Net Toll Usage of New
Agent Accounts shall be calculated in accordance with the methodology set forth in
paragraphs 2.3(b)(n), (i), (iv) and (v) above, except that the accounts to be calculated shall
be the New Agent Accounts and the measurement period to be used shall be the
Evaluation Measurement Period (as such term is defined below)

(xi) "Purchase Price” shall mean the sum of the Customer base
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Purchase Price plus the Accounts Receivable Purchase Price.

(c) Manner and Form of Payment: The Purchase Price shall be paid in

the form of cash and restricted shares of Purchaser’s voting commeon stock (as more fully
described below).

(i) Customer Base Purchase Price:

(1) Cash Portion. Fifty percent (50%) of the Customer
Base Purchase Price shall be paid in cash, by wire transfer or other immediately available

funds

(2) Stock Portion. Fifty percent (50%) of the Customer
Base Purchase Price shall be paid in shares of Purchaser's voting common stock which

are restricted from transfer under SEC Rule 144 (the "Restricted Stock"). The number
of shares of Restricted Stock to be paid shall be computed by dividing the Stock Portion
by the average closing share price for the five (5) trading days prior to the Closing Date

(i) Accounts Receivable Purchase Price. The Accounts

Receivable Purchase Price shall be paid in cash, by wire transfer or in other immediately
available funds. The Accounts Receivable Purchase Price may be increased in
accordance with the sliding scale set forth in Schedule 2.3(c)(ii). /Any such increase shall
be paid in cash, by wire transfer or in other immediately available funds on or before
September 15, 1996.

(d) Escrowed Shares. Atthe Closing, a sufficient number of shares of
Restricted Stock representing ten percent (10%) of the Purchase Price, calculated using
the average closing share price for the five (5) trading days prior to the Closing Date, shall
be placed in an escrow account ("Escrowed Shares'") as security for: (i) Seller's payment
of any reimbursement(s) necessitated by the Custrmer Evaluation (as such termis defined
below), (i) the Special Indemnification set_forth in paragraph 10.13 below, and (i) any
other obligation of Seller which arises hereunder, including but not imited to any
reimbursement which may become due as a result of the Accounts Recewable
Reconciliation. Any Escrowed Shares ralating to this paragraph which remain in escrow
after the Customer Evaluation shall be released by the escrow agent and delivered to
Seller

(e) Customer Evaluation. Upon the expiration of one (1) year rrom the

i
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Closing, the parties shall mutually evaluate whether there has been an increase or
decrease in the Net Toll Usage of the Qualified Customer Accounts. Such evaluation shall
be known as the "Customer Evaluation”

() For purposes of the Customer Evaluation, the term "Evaluation
Measurement Period" shall mean the period commencing March 1, 1997 and ending Apnil
30, 1897 Attached hereto and made a part hereof as Schedule 2.3(e)(i) is a listing of all
days included in the Evaluation Measurement Period and designated by: (1) date; (2) day
of week, and (3) weekday versus weekend day.

(i)  For purposes of the Customer Evaluation, the term “Evaluation
Net Toll Usage” shall be calculated utilizing the same methodology set forth above for
calculating Net Toll Usage except using the Evaluation Measurement Period.

(iii)  If the Customer Evaluation reveals an increase in the Net Toll
Usage level of the Qualified Customer Accounts, as measured by comparing Net Toll
Usage to Evaluation Net Toll Usage, Purchaser shall pay Seller thi: amount of the increase
multiplied by seven and one-half (7.5).

(1) Any payment resulting from such increase shall be in the
form of additional shares of Restricted Stock.

(2) The number of shares to be paid shall be calculated
using the average closing share price for the five (5) trading days prior to the date of the
Customer Evaluation

(iv) If the Customer Evaluaton indicates a decrease in the Net Toll
Usage level of the Qualified Customer Accounts greater than eighteen percent (18%) (the
"Allowable Attrition"), as measured by companng Net Toll Usage to the sum of (1)
Evaluation Net Toll Usage plus (2) Agent Net Tcll Usage, then the Purchase Price shall be
reduced by an amount equal to seven and one-half (7.5) times the excess of the decrease
over the Allowable Attrition

(1)  Any rembursement due as a result of such reduction

shall be paid first from the Escrowed Shares The number of Escrowed Shares to be
reimbursed shall be calculated using the average closing share price for the five (5) trading

days pnor to the date of the Customer Evaluation
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(2) Ifthe Escrowed Shares are insufficient to fully reimburse
Purchaser pursuant to this paragraph, Seller shall pay Purchaser a sufficient number of
shares out of the Restricted Stock it receives at the Closing in order to complete the
reimbursement.

(3)  If the Restricted Stock is insufficient to fully reimburse
Purchaser pursuant to this paragraph, Seller shall pay Purchaser any remaining unpaid
reimbursement in cash.

(4) Seller may, in its discretion, utilize cash for all or a
portion of any reimbursement due as a result of the Customer Evaluation.

2.4  Allocation of Payment of Purchase Price

The purchase price shall be allocated in accordance with Schedule 2.4
hereto which shall be submitted by Purchaser at the Closing, and all tax retumns filed by the
parties shall be consistent with such Schedule. Seller and Purchaser shall each file all
applicable IRS Forms, including but not imited to Form 8584, in a -sonsistent manner and
in accordance with such allocation and applicable law and regulations.

2.5 Assumption of Specific Liabilitics

{a) General. At the Closing, Purchaser shall assurne and shall
subsequently honor and discharge, in accordance with the relevant governing agreements,
only the obligations of Seller as, and only to the extent, mentioned herein or listed on
Schedule 2.5(a) hereto.

(b)  Agent Contracts

(i) Purchaser shall assume and shall subsequently horor and
discharge the actual amount of any and all applicable sales agent commissions (the
“Agent Commissions") in an amount not to exceed seven and one-half percent (7.5%)
of Net Toll Usage (the "Allowable Commission Percentage") for as long as said Agent
Commuissions are due and payable under the terms of the relevant governing agreements
between Seller and its various sales agents (the "Agent Contracts").

(i)  Seller shall continue to honor and pay any and all Agent
Commussions which exceed the Allowable Commission Percentage for as long as agent

%
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Commissions are owed under the terms of the Agent Contracts.

(iii) With respect to the Agent Contracts, Purchaser i1s only
assuming herein the obligation to pay Agent Commissions with respect to the Qualified
Customer Accounts and Accounts Receivable; Purchaser is not assuming the Agent
Contracts themselves.

(iv) All Agent Contracts are attached hereto and made a par
hereof, in globo, as Exhibit 2.5(b)(iv).

2.6 Limitation on Assumption of Liabilities

Purchaser shall not be liable for any of the obligations or lhiabilities of Seller,
of any kind o nature, other than those specifically assumed by Purchaser hereunder
Seller shall pay, perform and discharge all of its valid liabilities and obligations, directly
attributable to the Qualified Customer Accounts in the ordinary course of business, which
are not so assumed by Purchaser and shall specifically indemnify and hold harmless
Purchaser from and against same.

3. Representations and Warranties of Seller

Seller represents and warrants to Purchaser as follows:
3.1 Organization and Authority

Seller is a corporation duly organized, validly existirnig and in good standing
under the laws of the State of Nevada and has all requisite power and authority to own,
operate and lease its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted

3.2 Authorization of Agreement

The Board of Directors of Seller, pursuant to the power and authority legally
vested in it. has duly authorized the execution, sealir j and delivery of this Agreement by
Seller and the transactions hereby contemplated, and no action, confirmation or ratification
by the stockholders of Seller or by any other person, entity or governmental authority 15
required in connection therewith. Seller has the power and authority to execute, seal and
deliver this Agreement, to consummate the transactions hereby contemplated and to take
all other actions required to be taken by it pursuant to the provisions hereof Seiler has
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taken all actions required by law, its Certificate of Incorporation, its Bylaws or otherwise to
authorize the execution, sealing and delivery of this Agreement. This Agreement is valid
and binding upon Seller in accordance with its terms. Neither the execution, sealing and
delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of said transactions will constitute any
violation or breach of the Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws of Seller, or any order,
writ, injunction, decree, law, rule or regulation applicable to Seller.

3.3 No Conflicts

To the best of Seller's knowledge, the execution, delivery and performance
of this Agreement and the consummation of all of the transactions contemplated hereby:
(1) do not and w Il not with or without the giving of notice or passage of time or both, violate,
conflict with or result in a breach or termination of any provision of, or constitute a default
under, or accelerate or permit the acceleration of the performance required by the terms
of. or result in a creation of any mortgage, security interest, claim, lien, charge or other
encumbrance upon any of the Assets pursuant to, or otherwise give rise to any liability or
obligation under any agreement, mortgage, deed of trust, license, permit or other
agreement or instrument, or any order, judgment, decree, statute, regulation or any other
restriction of any kind or description to which Seller is a party or by which Seller or the
Assets may be bound; and (ii) will not terminate or result in the terminat.on of any such
agreement or instrument, or in any way affect or violate the terms anc conditions of, or
result in the cancellation, modification, revocation or suspension of, any rights in or to the
Assels

3.4 Title to Purchased Assets

Seller has, and on the Closing Date will have, good and marketable title to
all of the Assets free and clear of all claims and encumbrances, except claims and
encumbrances listed on Schedule 3.4 Seller further warrants and represents that none
of its subsidiary, parent or affiliated Lompanies have any nght, title or interest in the Assets,
and Seller is free to transfer the Assets without app aval or intervention of same

3.5 Material Contracts

Except as disclosed in Schedule 3.5 hereto, Seller is not a partv to or bound
by any material written or oral contracts, obligations or commitments related to the
Qualified Customer Accounts or the Accounts Receivable, including any written or cral
commitments to pay commissions or other compensation relative to the Qualified Cusiomer

(1]

Initials: Seller

Purchaser _%



Accounts or the Accounts Receivable. Seller has delivered or made available to Purchaser
correct and complete copies of all of the contracts, agreements and other documents listed
in Schedule 3.5 hereto and all amendments thereto and waivers granted thereunder. The
rights and interest of Seller in all such contracts and agreements may be assigned to
Purchaser without the consent of any other person, except as otherwise disclosed on
Schedule 3.5, and at the Closing, Purchaser will acquire all such rights and interest. There
are no unresolved disputes pending or, to the best knowledge of Seller, threatened under
or in respect of any such contracts or agreements. All such contracts and agreements are
valid and effective in accordance with their respective terms.

3.6 Customer Relationships

Seller has no knowledge that any Qualified Customer Account has been
terminated or is expected to be terminated, in whole or in part; provided, however, that this
subsection shall not be construed as a representation, warranty, or guarantee that any
such customer will, after the Closing, maintain its present business relationships with
Purchaser To the best of Seller's knowledge, no director or officer of Seller has any direct
or indirect interest in any such Qualified Customer Accounts.

3.7 Litigation; Compliance

(a)  To the best of Seller's knowledge, except as disclosed in Schedule
3.7(a) hereto, there are no actions, suits, proceedings or arbitrations or governmeniai
investigations pending or threatened against, by or affecting Seller (or to the best of the
knowledge of Seller. any basis therefor) in which, individually or in the aggregale. an
unfavorable determination could materally and adversely affect any of the Assets or
impede execution or performance of this Agreement. Seller has not received any notice
of any violation of any applicable Federal State, local or ‘oreign law, rule, regulation,
ordinance order or decree relating to the Assets, and Seller is not aware of any threatened
claim of such violation or any basis therefor.

(b} To the best of Seller's knowledge, Seller has complied and 15 in
comphance in all matenal respects with all laws, rules, requlations, ordinances, arders,
decrees writs njunctions, building codes, safety, fire and health codes, or other
governmental restrictions applicable to Seller, or the Assets

(¢) To the best of Seller's knowledge, Seller has all governmental
icenses permits. approvals or other authonzalions presently required to service the
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Qualified Customer Accounts, all of which are in full force and effect and all of which are
listed on Schedule 3.7(c) hereto

3.8 Disclosure

To the best of Seller's knowledge, no representation or warranty by Seller
and no statement or certificate furnished or to be furnished by or on behalf of Seller to
Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement or in connection with the transactions contemplated
hereby contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading.

3.8 Acquisition of Shares

Seller represents and warrants to Purchaser that the shares of Res.icted
Stock being acquired by Seller pursuant to this Agreement are being acquired by Seller for
investment for its own account and not with a view to, or tor the offer for sale or for the sale
in connection with, any distribution thereof. Seller covenants and ag-ees that Seller shall
not sell, assign or otherwise transfer the Shares other than in transactions which are not
in violation of the Securities Act of 1933 and applicable state securities laws. As used in
this Section 3.9, “transactions which are not in violation of the Securities Act of 1933" do
not include transactions which directly or indirectly result in a subsequent disposition of the
Restricted Stock pursuant to Regulation S adopted under the Securities Act of 1933, Each
stock certificate of Purchaser representing the Restricted Stock shall bear the following
legend, unless such legend may be removed in accordance with its terms:

"The securities represented by this stock
certificate have not been registered under the
Securities Act of 19723 (the "Act") or applicable
state securities laws (the "State Acts"), and shall
not be sold, pledged, hypothecated, donated, or
otherwise transferred (whether or not for
consideration) by the holder except upon the
issuance to Purchaser of a favorable opinion of
its counsel or submission to the Corporation of
such other evidence as may be satisfactory to
counsel for Furchaser to the effect that any such
transfer shall not be in violation of that certain
Asset Purchase Agreement dated May 8, 1996,
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the Act and the State Acts”

3.10 Disclaimer of Fraudulent Intent.

Seller represents and warrants that the transactions described in this Agreement
have been undertaken in good faith, considering its obligations to any person or entity to
whom Seller owes a right to payment, whether or not the right is reduced to judgment,
liquidated, unliquidated, fixed, contingent, matured, unmatured, disputed, undisputed,
legal, equitable, secured or unsecured (collectively such persons with such claims are
called “"Creditors" under this paragraph), and has undertaken these transactions without
any intent to hincer, delay or defraud any such Creditors, and either has disclosed in the
ordinary course of business or will undertake to disclose to all such Creditors the existence
of this transaction, and has not and will not conceal this transaction or the proceeds to this
transaction from any such Creditors. Seller further represents and warrants that: (1) it will
not retain possession or control of any of the property transferred under this Agreement
following the Closing, except as expressly provided in this Agreement and thn only for and
on behalf of the account of the Purchaser; (2) the Seller has not been sued or threatened
with suit by any Creditor prior to the execution of this Agreement; (3) the Seller has not
removed or concealed any assets from any Creditors; (4) the Seller has not incurred any
substantial debt that i1s significantly greater than the normal and customary debts of the
Seller in the ordinary course of business; (5) the Seller at Closing believes in good faith
that Seller will receive consideration reasonably equivalent to the value of the Assels
transferred under this Agreement; and (6) no applicable bulk sales law or similar statute
exists which would prevent the sale of the Assets to Purchaser or require approval by any
of Seller's creditors of the sale of the Assets to Purchaser.

4. Representations and Warranties of Furchaser
Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller as follows:

4.1 Corporate Status

Purchaser is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Delaware with full corporate power and authority
to carry on its business as now conducted,
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4.2  Authority for Agreement

Purchaser has the power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreemeni
and to carry out its obligations hereunder. The execution, delivery and performance by the
Purchaser of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of
Purchaser. This Agreement has been duly executed by Purchaser and the transactions
contemplated by it constitute the legal, valid and binding obligation of Purchaser
enforceable against Purchaser in accordance with its terms. No consent, approval, or
authorizatinn of, or declaration, filing, or registration with, any federal or state governmental
or regulatory authority is required to be made or obtained by Purchaser in connection with
the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, except approval of applicable public service
COmMISSIoNS.

4.3  No Conflicts

To the best of Purchaser's knowledge, the execution, delivery and
performance of this Agreement and the consummation of all of the transactions
contemplated hereby: (i) do not and will not with or without the giving of notice or passage
of time or both, violate, conflict with or result in a breach or termination of any provision of.
or constitute a default under, or accelerate or permit the acceleration of the performance
required by the terms of, or result in a creation of any mortgage, secunty interest, claim,
lien, charge or other encumbrance upon any of the Assets pursuant to, or otherwise give
rise to any liability or obligation under any agreement, mortgage, deed of trust, license,
permit or other agreement or instrument, or any order, judgment, decree, statute,
regulation or any other restriction of any kind or description to which Purchaser Is a party
or by which Purchaser or the Assets may be bound; aud (i) will not terminate or result in
the termination of any such agreement or instrument, or in any way affect or violate the
terms and conditwons of, or result in the cancellation, modification, revocation or suspension
of. any rights in or to the Assets.

5. eller’
Seller covenants that from the date of this Agreement and until the Closing Date

(a) Purchaser and its counsel, accountants and other representatives
shall have full access to all properties, books, accounts, records, contracts and aocuments

4
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of or relating to the Assets, but Purchaser shall not have access to any information not
related to the Assets. Seller shall furnish or cause to be furnished to Purchaser and its
representatives all data and information concerning the Assets that may be reasonably
requested. Seller agrees that, unless and until the Closing has been consummated, Seller
and its officers, directors and other representatives will hold in strict confidence, and waiil
not use to the detriment of Purchaser, all data and information with respect to Purchaser
and Purchaser's business and operations obtained in connection with this transaction or
Agreement. If the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are not consummated,
Purchaser will return to Seller all data and information that Seller may reasonably request
including all documents prepared or made available to Purchaser by Seller in cornection
with this Agreement.

(b)  Seller will, with respect to the Qualified Customer Accounts, carry on
its business and activities diligently and in substantially the same manner as they
previously have been carried out and shall not make or institute any unusual or novel
methods of management or operations to the detriment of Purchaser that vary matenally
from those methods used by Seller as of the date of this Agreement relating to the
Qualified Customer Accounts, without the prior written consent of Purchaser.

6. Covenants
6.1  Further Assurances

At any time and from time to time after the Closing Date, each party shall,
without further consideration, execute and deliver to the other such other instruments of
transfer and assumption and shall take such other action as the other may reasonably
request to carry out the transfer of the Assets and the assumplion of the specific habilities
cantemplated by this Agreement

6.2  Standstill; Public Announcemen*

Prior to the Closing or termination of this Agreement, Seller agrees not to
directly or indirectly solicit, entertain or encourage offers or negotiate with any other person
or entity regarding the purchase or salc of the Assels except with respect to the release
of the lien(s) and priority on the Assets currently existing in favor of Wiltel. Seller shall not
make any public announcement with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement
Purchaser intends to make an announcement consistent with its public disclosure

obligations
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¥ Conditions Precedent
7.1 Conditions to Obligations of Purchaser

The obligation of Purchaser to pay the Purchase Price to Seller and to satisfy
its other obligations hereunder shall be subject to fulfilment (or waiver by Purchaser) at or
prior to the Closing, of the following additional conditions, which Seller agrees to use its
best efforts to cause to be fulfilled:

(a) Representations, Performance

The representations and warranties of Seller contained in Section 3
hereof shall be true in all material respects at and as of the Closing Date, except as
affected by the transactions contemplated hereby. Seller shall have duly performed and
complied with all agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performea,
or complied with, by it prior to or on the Closing Date. There shall have been no matenal
adverse change in the Qualified Customer Accounts

(b) Consents

Seller shall have provided full cooperation to Purchaser with respect
to Purchaser's responsibility to apply for any required material approvals, acceptances and
consents of or to the transactions contemplated hereby, including notice to applicable
public service commissions.

(c) Corporate Proceedings

All corporate and other proceedings of Seller in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and all documents and instruments incident
to such corporate proceedings shall be reasonably satisfactory in substance and form to
Purchaser, and Purchaser shall have received all such documents and instruments, or
copies thereof

(d) New Agent Agreements

All agreements with any of Seller's agents who Purchaser, in its sole
discretion, deems necessary to preserving the integrity of the Assets purchasea nereby

16
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shall have been successfully negotiated arnd fully executed.

(e)  Forfeiture of Dialers/Equipment

All dialers and other customer equipment currently owned and used
by Seller to service the Qualified Customer Accounts shall have been forfeited and/or
donated by Seller to the customers utilizing said dialers and equipment.

()  Einancial Statements

Seller shall have provided Purchaser with all audited financial
statement; and unaudited interim financial statements which are required by Regulation
S-X of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

(@) No Material Changes

No material changes shall have occurred affecting: (1) the financial
position of Seller; (2) the information previously disclosed to Purchaser; or (3) the Assc's
to be purchased hereunder, including but not limited to encumbrance or impairment of the
Assels in any manner whatsoever

(h) Minimum Net Toll Usage

Net Toll Usage, to be calculated at 500 p.m. CST on May 22, 1996,
shall be equal to or greater than $600,000.

7.2  Conditi i

The obligations of Seller to deliver the bill of sale, assignments,
endorsements and other instruments of transfer relating to the Assets and to satisfy
Seller's other obligations hereunder shall be subject to the fulfillment, on or prior to the
Closing Date (or wawer by Seller), of the following conditions, which Purchaser agrees to
use its best efforts 1o cause to be fulfilled

(a) Representations, Performance

The representations and warranties of Purchaser contained in Section
4 hereof shall be true at and as of the Closing Date. Purchaser shall have duly pertarmed
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and complied in all material respects with all agreements and conditions required by this
Agreement to be performed, or complied with, by it prior to or on the Closing Date

(b) Corporate Proceedings

All corporate and other proceedings in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and all documents and instruments incident
thereto. shall be satisfactory lo Seller and Seller shall have received all such documents
and instruments, or copies thereof.

()  No Material Changes

No material changes in the financial position of Purchaser or material
changes in the information previously disclosed to Seller shall have occurred.

8.  Useof Name

Purchaser and its affiliated entities shall have the right to use the names "Universal
Network Services, Inc.”, "UNS", "Uni-Net" and all other names currently being used by
Seller in the conduct of its business with respect to the Qualified Cusiomer Accounts for
a peniod of ninety (9C) days following the Closing Date.

9.  Indemnification Manner of Claims

9.1 |Indemnification. From and after the Closing Date, Seller will~~demnify
Purchaser against, and hold Purchaser harmless from, any and all liability, damage,
deficiency, loss, cost or expense (including reasonable attorney's fees) that is based upon
or that arises out of (i) any misrepresentation or breach of any representation, warranty or
agreement made by Seller herein (ii) any obligation, debt or liability of Seller to the extent
that the same is not expressly assumed herein by Purrhaser, or (iii) the use and ownership
of the Assets on or prior to the Closing Date (other than those liabilities specifically
assumed by FPurchaser hereunder).

9.2 Manner of Claims
Any notice of a claim by reason of any of the representations and warranties

contained in this Agreement shall state specifically the representation or warranty with
respect to which the claim is asserted, and the amount of liability asserted against the other
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party by reason of the claim.
10. Miscellancous
10.1 Consents of Third Parties

This Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign any interest in
any instrument, contract, lease, permit or other agreement or arrangement of Seller, or any
claim, right or benefit arising thereunder or resulting therefrom, if any assignment without
the consent of a third party would constitute a breach or violation thereof or adversely
affect the rights of the Purchaser or Seller thereunder. If a consent of a third party which
is required in order to assign any instrument, contract, lease, permit or other agreement
or arrangement or any claim, right or benefit arising thereunder or resulting therefrom,
which consent Seller shall use its best efforts to obtain prior to the Closing, is not obtained
prior to the Closing, or if an attempted assignment would be ineffective or would adversely
affect the ability of Seller to convey its interest to the Purchaser, Seller will cooperate with
Purchaser in any lawful and economically feasible arrangement to provide that Purchaser
shall receive Seller's interest in the benefits under any such instrumeni, contract, lease,
permit or other agreement or arrangement; and any transfer or assignment to Purchaser
by Seller of any interest under any such instrument, contract, lease, permit or other
agreement or arrangement that requires the consent of a third party shall be made subject
1o such consent or approval being obtained,

10.2 Expenses

Subject to the terms of Section 9 hereof, each of the parties hereto shall bear
its own expenses, costs and fees (including attorney's fees) in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby, including the preparatiorn and execution of this
Agreement and compliance herewith, whether or not the L.ansactions contemplated hereby
shall be consummated. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser agrees to pay fifty
percent (50%) of the actual fees charged by Seller's audit firm as bilied in connection with
the audit of Seller's books currently being conducted. In no event shall the audit fecs paio
by Purchaser pursuant to this paragraph exceed $22,000, provided an additional audit is
not required

10.3 Severability

If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemea 10 be, or
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shall in fact be, inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case because it
conflicts with any other provision or provisions hereof or any constitution or statute or rule
of public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of
rendening the term or provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case
or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained invalid,
inoperative, or unenforceable to any extent whatever, but such term or provision shall be
deemed modified or deleted as or to the extent required by applicable law. The invalidity
of any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses, sections, or subsections of this
Agreement shall not affect the remaining portions of this Agreement.

10.4 Notices

All notices, consents, requests, instructions, approvals and other
communications provided for herein in regard hereto shall be validly given, made or
served, if in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail (.eturn
receipt requested), postage prepaid, (i) if to Purchaser at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge,
Louisiana, 70801, Attn: Mike Ross, President; and (ii) if to Seller at Two Corporate Plaza,
Suite 200, Newport Beach, CA 92660, Attn: Dennis Houston, in each case at such other
address as may be specified in writing to the other parties.

10.5 Amendment

This Agreement may not be amended except by an instrument in writing, duly
executed and delivered on behalf of each of the parties hereto.

10.6 Waiver

Any party may waive comnliance by another with any of the provisions of this
Agreement No waiver of any provisions shall be construed as a waiver of any other
provision Any waiver must be in wnting

10.7 Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an onginal agreement, and all of which taken together shall constitute one
agreement, notwithstanding that all of the parties are not signatories to the original or the

same counterpart
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10.8 Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement or the rights or obligations hereunder by
any party without the prior written consent of the nonassigning parties shall be void
Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may assign all or any party of its nights and/or
obligations to one or more affiliates, subsidianes, parent companies or shareholders of said
party No such assignment shall relieve the assigning party of any of its obligations or
duties under this Agreement.

10.9 Costs

In the event any action is instituted to enforce or interpret the terms of this
Agreement or arises out of this Agreement, the party prevailing in such action shall be
entitled tc recover its reasonable attorney's fees and costs as determined by the court

10.10 Entire Agreement: Applicable Law, etc.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement anc' supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall be governed in a'l respects, including
validity, interpretation and effect, by the laws of the State of Louisiana applicable to
contracts made and to be performed in Louisiana

10.11 Industry Terms and Phrases

All terms and phrases unique to the telecommunications industry and used
within this Agreement shall be defined in accordance with the everyday meaning assigned
to such terms and phrases within the industry

10.12 Underlying Carrier Approval

The transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be stnictly contingent
upon the consent and approval, in writing, of any of Seller's underlying carriers who provide
service 1n connection with the Qualified Customer Accounts

10.13 Special Indemnification

(a) Seller shall specifically indemnify and hold harmless Purcnaser (the

| -
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“Special Indemnification") from and against liabilities resulting from: (1) Seller's use of
invalid letters of agency/authorization as determined by any local exchange carrier; (2)
unauthorized transacting of business by Seller without all necessary state and federal
authority and permission; and/or (3) Seller's failure to pay any and all amounts owed by
Seller to Tax Resource Group, the Internal Revenue Service and any state taxing authority.

(i) The Special Indemnification shall be due within fiteen (15} days
of Seller's receipt of written notice from Purchaser demanding same and shall be paid first
in the form of the Escrowed Shares.

(i)  The number of Escrowed Shares to be paid shall be calculated
using the average closing share price for the five (5) trading days prior to the date of the
Special Inderanification.

(iii) If the Escrowed Shares are insufficient to fully indemnify
Purchaser pursuant to this paragraph, Seller shall pay Purchaser a sufficient number of
shares of Restricted Stock to complete the Special Indemnification.

(iv)  Seller may, in its discretion, utilize cash for all or a portion of
any Special Indemnification due as a result of this paragraph

(b) Seller hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Purchaser harmless from
and against any liabilities for which Purchaser pays, or is asked to pay, by any and all of
Seller's currently existing creditors and/or the Internal Revenue Service.

11.  Termination.

11.1 Mutual Consent This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the
Closing by mutual consent of Seller and Purchaser, expressed by action of their respective
Boards of Directors

11.2 Remedies on Termination. In the event any party hereto, without the nght
to do so under this Agreement, shall fail or refuse to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, or if any defau't under. or breach of, any representation
warranty, covenant or condition of thic Agreement on the part of any party shall have
occurred that results in the failure to consummate the transactions contempiated hereby
then, in addition to any other remedies provided in this Agreement or by applicable law, the
nondefaulting party shall be entitied to obtain from the defaulting party costs and expenses.
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including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by it in enforcing its nghts hereunder.
including but not limited to the right to seek specific performance of this Agreement.

12. Additional Terms, Covenants, etc.
12.1 Registration of Restricted Stock.

(a)  Purchaser hereby warrants that, after sixty (60) days from the Closing
and upon Seller's request, it will file a Form S-3 Registration Statement with the Securities
Exchange Commission to apply for registration of the Restricted Stock issued hereby in
order to allow Seller the ability to sell or transfer its Restricted Stock. Any covenants of
Purchaser contained in this paragraph (a) shall be subject to and limited by the terms and
conditions of the Lock-Up Agreement referred to in paragraph (b) below.

(b)  Atthe Closing, the parties shall enter into a mutually acceptable lock-
up agreement (the “Lock-Up Agreement"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit
12.1(b) containing certain restrictive covenants regarding share ownership and transfer
of shares

12.2 Tri-Party Agreement

All of Purchaser's obligations hereunder, including but not limited to
Purchaser s obligation to close the transactions contemplated hereby, shall be strictly
contingent upon the successful negotiation and execution, within ten (10) days of the date
of this Agreement. of a tri-party agreement (“Tri-Party Agreement"”) between Seller,
FPurcnaser and Wiltel pursuant to which Wiltel: (1) agrees to the release of its security
nterest covenng the Assets; (2) consents to the transactions contemplated herein, and (3)
agrees to allow Purchaser to immediately transition all Q' alified Customer Accounts to
Purchaser s own Wilmax contract at no additional cost to Purchaser and with no
interruption of service to the customers whose accounts are so transitioned. In the evant
a In-Party Agreement 1s not so executed within ten (10) days of the date of this
Agreement then Purchaser may terminate this Agreement in full and with no penalty or
hability whatsocever
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the

date first written above.

Network Long Distance, Inc.

Name: Mike Ross
Title: President

/)

Name: David Rosenfeld
Title: Assistant Secretary

Unlvememma Inc.:

Name: Dennis Houston
Title: President

Attest: =~

By: 'lﬁ_tﬂ / Lowsed
Name: John H. Brownell

Title: Secretary
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S RITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMIS N

Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K

(X1 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
[FEE REQUIRED]

For the Fiscal Year ended: March 31, 1995
OR

1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
[NO FEE REQUIRED]

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 0-23172

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

_ Delaware 72-1122018
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer Iderti-
Incorparation or Organization) fication Number)

525 Florida Street

(Address of Principal Executive Offices,
Including Zip Code)

Hegistrant's telephane number, including area code. (504) 343-31256
Secynties registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None.
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Yes

Common Stock, .0001 Par Value Per Share
{Title of Class)

indicate by check mark whether the Registrant {1 has filed all reports required to be hiled by Secuon 13 or
151d) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 durning the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter penod that
the Hegistrant was required 1o file such reports], and 12} has been subject to such filing requirements for the
pas! 90 days

Yes X No__

As of June 13, 1985, 2,979,890 shares of common stock were outstanding. The aggregate market value of
the common stock of Network Long Distance, Inc. (the “Company”) held by nonaffiliates as of June 13, 1995
was $12 B06 408

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K (& 229 405 of
this chapter] s not contanad hergin, and will not be contmned, to the best of Registrant’s knowledge, In
defimtive prosy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10K [X]

Ducuments incorporated by reference: None.

Tus Form 10-K consists of 49 pages. Exhibits are indexed at page 32




Page 2 of 49

PART I
ltem 1. Business.
General

Network Long Distance, Inc. (the “Company”) provides long distance and
telecommunication services sold to end-users by resellers of the Company's services
{*switchless reseller division”), turnkey long distance services sold to end-users by master
agents of the Company (“agent division”) and long distance services sold directly to end-

users {“retail division™).

The Company provides long distance telecommunications services to commercial and
residential customers. The Company transmits long distance telephone calls through and
over various tvpes of transmission circuits leased from other telecommunications carriers
at fixed or vanable rates. Calls may be routed through the Company's switching center,
which selects the least expensive among the various available transmission alternatives to
complete the call. Calls can also be completed by various underlying carriers. Tne
Company provides billing, customer service and other features relative to the call. Profits
are based on the Company's ability to charge rates in excess of the Company's cost of
transmitting calls over the transmission lines selected by the switching' equipment or in

excess of underlying carrier costs.

Over the past three (3) years the Company has grown rapidly and is a provider of
long distance services throughout the United States. The Company's main services include
MTS (Message Telecommunication Service), which is also referred to as direct distance
dialing (DDD) or 1+ dialing. Other long distance products include WATS, private line, travel
{calling cards), and 800 services for incoming toll-free calls (the called party pays for the
call). The foliowing table shows the results of each of the last three fiscal years:

For the Year Ended March 31
1995 1994 1993
Revenues $24,216,948 $10.621,705 $4,509,520

The long distance industry is dominated by the four largest long distance providers.
AT&T, MCI, Sprint Communications, and WorldCom, each with revenues over $1 billion,
comprise the first tier in this industry. The second level is comprised of companies under
$1 billion but in excess of $100 million in annual revenues. The Company's goal is to
establish itself as a second-level long distance telecommunications company. The Company
will attempt to achieve this goal through its planned acquisition of other long distance
companies, increased sales utilizing the Company's reseller, agent and retail distribution
channels and the addition of new services for its customers.
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Industry Overview

The competitive long distance telecommunications industry has evolved principally
as a result of the divestiture in 1984, by ATE&T of its local exchange operations which are
collectively known as Bell Operating Companies ("BOCs”). AT&T's former local business
has been divided into seven regional Bell operating companies ("RBOCs”) (NYNEX, Bell
Atlantic, Bell South, Ameritech, U.S. West, SBC Communications and Pa=""ic Telasis).

As part of the AT&T consent decree, the United States was divided into approxi-
mately 200 geographic areas known as Local Access Transport Areas or “LATAs.” Under
the decree, RBOCs are now permitted only to provide for local and long distance service
originating and terminating within a LATA (“IntraLATA" waffic). Long distance service
between LATAs (“InterLATA" traffic) is provided by long distance companies known as
“interexchange carriers” and include such companies as AT&T, MCI, Sprint and the

Company.

The consent decree also requires the RBOCs and other local exchange carr'ars 10
provide int2rexchange carriers with access to local telephone exchange facilities which are
“equal in type, quality and price” (*Equal Access”) to that provided to AT&T. In addition,
regulations were mandated in order to place all long distance carriers on equal competitive
footing. Prior to equal access, customers of long distance carriers other than AT&T
trequently had to dial a lccal access number and a personal authorizaiion code 1o make a
long distance call, These requirements ware, for the most part, elimnated by the equal
access regulations, under which a customer is given the opportunity to designate its primary
long distance carrier. Now, to connect with the network of their long distance carriers,
customers merely dial *1%, the area code and the telephone number of their desired call
destination, which is the same method of access available to customers of AT&T in all

markets ("1 + dialing”).

The AT&T consent decree and federal regulations mandating equal access constitutle
the fundamental regulatory framework that allow interexchange carriers other than AT&T
to compete in the long distance market. The Company views the long distance industry as
a three-level industry, of which AT&T, MCI, Sprint, and World"om comprise the first-level
with annual revenues in excess of $1 billion, The second-level is comprised of companies
with less than $1 billion, but more than $100 million, in annual revenues. The Company
is positioned in the third-level, with annual revenues of less than $100 million. Compatition
in the industry 15 based on pricing, customer service, network quality and value-added

s5ervices

There has been significant growth in the long distance service industry durnng the
past several years. According to a 1992 FCC report based on information supplied by the
Nauvonal Exchange Carrnier Association, aggregate intersiate switched access minutes
increased at a compound annual rate of 11.9% during the seven year period ended
December 31, 1991, The FCC report also indicated that aggregate long distance revenues
reported by long distance carriers to their stockholders during the 1991 calendar year
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amounted to $60.7 billion. The compound annual growth rate for long distance revenue
was 6.0% from 1984 through 1991,

According to the FCC report, the percentage of long distance revenues earned by
second- and third-level carriers, such as the Company, has also increased since 1984, The
first-level companies earned BB.5% of such 1991 revenues, as compared to 97.4% in
1984, while the second- and third-level carriers accounted for 11.5% of such 199
revenues, as compared to 2.6% in 1984, Aggregate long distance revenues of the second-
and third-level carriers grew at a compound annual rate of 31.3% from 1984 through 1991,

Such FCC data also indicated an increase in aggregate long distance revenues of first-
level carriers of 4.2% for the nine months ended September 30, 1992, over the correspond-
ing period in 1991. By contrast, revenues of second- and third-level carriers increased by

12.3% between such periods.

History

The Company, a Delaware corporation, was formed on December 3, 1987, under the
name Harmoney Street Capital, Inc. and was primarily in the business of seeking business
opportunities and a merger candidate. To this end, on December 19, 1990, the Company
acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of M.M. Ross, Inc., a priate Louisiana corporation
formed in 1979 by the Company's President, Michael M. Ross, and its Treasurer, Marc I.
Becker, which began providing long distance service prior to the divestiture by AT&T of the
Bell operating companies. Since 1980, the Company has continued 1o expand its services
and customer base and is now exclusively a long distance telecommunications company.
Accordingly, in August, 1991, the Company changed its name to Network Long Distance,
Inc. to more accurately reflect its operations.

Strategic Approach
The Company's objective is to reach & volume of revenues that would enable i1 to be
classified as a second-level long diste ce company wi*h annual revenues in excess of $100

millon. In order to reach this level, the Company will attempt to increase revenue, improve
cash flows and increase earnings by implementing the following business strategies:

Nationwide Origination

The Company provides nationwide originatuon of long distance services. This enables
retaill, agent and switchless reseller customers to be added in any of the 48 contiguous
United States. thereby enabling expansion to occur on a national, rather than regional basis.

Build Call Volume

In order to reach certain economies of scale, the Company will continue to focus on
building minutes of long distance traffic by region, to defined levels, prior to establishing an
independent switching system for that region. This strategy allows the Company to build
call volumes within geographic areas without incurring large capital expenditures for
switching equioment until the call velumes meet an accep.able predefined level. Once the

sdls
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Company has established the call volumes 1o an acceptable level, the Company can reduce
its cost of transmission by establishing a switching system.

The management of the Company is experienced at tratfic engineering, utilized to
evaluate the optimum network configuration which will reduce the Company's costs. Retail,
agent and switchless reseller customers will receive the benefits of a network configuration
that provides for lower cost transmission in markets where call volume is high and
suppored by the Company's switching systems. In addition, due to the Company’s large
volume of traffic, the Company has negotiated long distance facility arrangements that allow
it to provide a low cost per minute in the other areas in which it operates.

Consolidation to Support Marketing

The Company has a strategic plan for acquiring small and medium-size long distance
telephone companies as a method of achieving controlled growth. The size of the
acqguisition targets is a key concept in the Company’'s acquisition strategy. Combining
small- and medium-size long distance companies creates large gains in market share and
immediate operating improvements through economies of scale. The Company's plan is to
use the consolidation of other long distance companies operating throughout the United
States into a platform to serve the sales made by retail, agent and switchless resellers.

The Company has and will seek additional affiliations with existing marketers of long
distance telephone services, agents and switchless resellers, which sell 1o their end users’
long distance telecommunications services that utilize the Company's ¢ xisting relationships
and facilmes. These marketing companies supplement the Company's direct sales staff and
act as the Company's nationwide distribution channel.

Principal Divisions

The Company attempts to maximize minutes from all three divisions of its long
distance telecommunications market. The Company primarily focuses its efforts and
expansion philosophy on the switchless reseller and agent divisions because it believes that
larger interexchange carriers are not offering comprehensive services to these markets.

Switchless Reseller

As providers of long distance services to their end-user retail customers, switchless
resellers constantly strive to reduce their vanable costs of access to long distance
transmission facilities and sarvices. Switchless resellers’ margin is the dilference between
the vanable costs of long distance services utilized by switchless resellers and the price at
which they sell such services,

Histancally. tirst-lavel interexchange carriers have provided the bulk of transmission
taciiues and services to switchless resellers. Howaever, in recent years, such interexchange
carners have provided less favorable pricing to switchless resellers and have not offered all
of the support services necessary, forcing them to look to other providers. While a large
number of companies compete in the switchless reseller market, the Company believes
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resellers are attracted to the Company because of the range of transmission, billing and
other support services available from the Company.

The Company typically provides origination and termination services to its switchless
reseller customers. Long distance service requirements of switchless resellers vary
depending on their retail customer base, existing service capability and regional location

Agent

Master agents sign non-exclusive contracts with the Company to represent the
Company and sell its long distance services to end-users. The agents are paid a variable
commission on each service sold. While a large number of companies compete in the agent
market, the Company believes master agents are attracted to the Company due to the high
quality, commissions, products and support of its services.

The Company provides turn-key long distance service for master agents. These
services include everything necessary for set up of end-user accounts, transmis.ion, billing,
customer support, credit and collection and all other services. Master agents build their own

network of agents.

Retail

The Company's retail division currently concentrates on commercial customers, which
use long distance services more frequently on weekdays during normal business hours, as
compared to residential users who tend to place calls more frequently at night and on
weekends when rates are lower. The Company believes that commaercial cus..mers tend
to use long distance services more often and generate more billable minutes than residential
users. The Company primarily targets commercial customers which incur monthly phone
charges of approximately $200 to $10,000.

The Company provides long distance services to retail customers who utilize the
Company's services throughout the United States. The Company offers a variety of value-
added features and options designed to attract the interest of long distance customers. For
example, the Company ofers unique bi.ing reports, which display the calls made in number
called order. an inbound “800°, which service permits the customer to be billed for all
incoming long distance calls and a travel card service, which permits customers to utilize
the Company's network from locations outside of their own service areas. The Company
primarnly charges its customers on the basis of minutes of usage at rates that vary with the

ume of day of call.

Rates and Charges

Management believes that its rates generally will remain competitive with or below
rates charged by long distance carriers such as AT&T, MCI and Sprint and most other
commen carners, The savings realized by customers of the Company and other long
distance carners may decrease in the future if and to the extent AT&T further reduces 11s

rates, See “Competition” and "Regulation.”
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The Company charges its customers on the basis of minutes or partial minutes of use
at rates which may vary with the distance, duration, time of day of the call and the type of
call. Rates charged for a call are not affected by the particular transmission facilities
selected by the Company’s switching system for call transmission but are affected by the
type of call a user may select. The Company performs its own billing functions for most
ol its customer base, and, also uses an independent billing company to invoice certain
customers in conjunction with their local telephone bills.

Eacilities

The Company leases digital, fiber optic transmission facilities at either fixed rates or
at rates which vary according to usage. The Company leases these facilities at rates which
are less than those charged to its customers for connecting calls through these facilities.
The continued availability of cost-effective digital, fiber optic transmission facilities in certain
of the Company's service origination areas, as well as proper planning of the utilization of
leased transmission facilities, is entical to the Company’s ability to provide its services on

a profiteble basis.

Fixed cost leased facilities include intercity private line circuits provided oy other
faciities based bulk carriers. Bulk carriers are also known as “carrier’s carriers” and provide
large bundled transmission capacity. These circuils represent point-to-point bulk circuits
which are broken down by the Company into retail and resale subscriber capacity. For
routes that carry high volumes of tratfic, the Company’s fixed cos! facilities normally cost
the Company less per minute of usage than usage sensitive facilities, Accordingly, the
Company, through use of its computerized network switching equipment and its contract
negotiations, endeavors to maximize usage of fixed cost leased facilities and negotiated

rates from its underlying carriers.

The Company contracts with other various underlying telecommunication carriers 1o
provide ongination and terminating transmission of calls not switched by the Company.
Currently, the Company provides direct billing to end users, billing tapes and other
enhancements. The Company is dependent upon the underlying carriars for competiive
contract arrangements,

Network Switching

The Company's computerized network switching equipment, to which some long
distance calls are directed, routes the calls to their destinations over leased transmission
circutts then available at the least cost. In addition to networking, the Company's switching
equipment verifies the customer's preassigned personal authorization code or the telephone

number called from, records billing data, tests transmission citcuits, and monitors systom
quality and performance.

The Company believes that digital switches are generally superior to all other currently
avalable types of switches. Digital switches are able to interface with digital transmission
facilities leased by the Company, and are able to handle multiple transmission channels on

bor
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a single line, thereby reducing transmission COsts, A digital switch also provides superior
gquality and ease of maintenance.

The Company's current switching equipment is manufactuied by DSC Communica:
tions Corporation. DSC Communications Corporation is the sole supplier of the Company's
switching equipment; however, the Company believes other sources are available for digital
swilching equipment at comparable prices and quality and may glect to use one or more of
these vendors in the future.

Sales and Marketing

The Company utilizes an in-house sales staff which consists of a marketing manager,
sales manager, and account executives. This staff is responsible for the switchless reseller,
agent and retail division accounts. The sales staff utilizes various marketing techniques to
solicit customers and continually monitors existing customer accounts to insure satisfaction
with the Company's services. In addition, the Company supplements sales efforts with
switchless resellers and independent master agents (collectively referred to herein as
“marketing companies”) who sell the Company's services to their end-users.

Marketing companies concentrate on the sale of long distance telecommunications
products and services through a sales force of regiona and nationwide agents who solicit
commercial and residential retail customers. The marketing companies generally solicit
accounts through face to face meetings with small to mediun business accounts.
Marketing companies typically establish a network of agents bu.t on a foundation of
continued residual commissions on customer accounts serviced by the Company. Currently,
marketing companies provide the largest part of the Company’s sales efforts.

The Company anticipates hinng additional in-house sales representatives, expanding
its participation in national, regional and local trade shows and expanding its line of public
intormation and advertising materials.

Busi E :

It 15 estimated that there are currently more than 00 small and medium-sized long
distance companies operating throughout the United States which are similar to the
Company in terms of operating revenues and customer base. The Company will evaluate
several of these companies with a view to their acquisition or purchase of their customer
base The addition of these entities will enable the Company to increase its operating
etficiency without a significant increase in overhead by realizing economies of scale.

The Company believes that the larger long distance companies such as ATET, MCI,
Sprint, and WorldCom are no longer actively pursuing acquisition of small and medium-sized
long distance companies because it adds only marginally 1o their market size and economies
of scale. This provides an opportunity for the Company 1o acquire these small and medium-
sized long distance companies without competition from the larger long distance companies.

]
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The Company is in the process of identifying specific candidates and has executed
agreements, understandings, and commitments 1o acquire some targeted companies. The
Company has completed the acquisition of six customer bases in Texas, New Jersey,
Louisiana, New Yerk, Nevada and Oklahoma. The Company's goal is to establish itself as
4 second-level long distance telecommunications company, and believes through
acquisitions and the resulting economics of scale it will be able to achieve this goal.

. -

The Company competes with numerous interexchange carriers and resellers, some
of which are substantially larger, have substantially greater financial, technical and
marketing resources, or utilize larger transmission systems than the Company. ATE&T is the
dominant supplier of long distance services in the United States InterLATA market. The
Company also competes with other national interexchange carriers, such as MCI, Sprint,
WorldCom and regional long distance telecommunications companies. The Company
believes that the principal competitive factors affecting its market share are pricing,
transmission quality, customer service, cost of underlying facilities and, 1o a lesser extent,
value added services. The Company believes that it competes etfectively with owner
nterexchange carriers and resellers in its service areas on the basis of these factors. The
ability of the Company to compete effectively will depend upon its continued ability to
maintain high quality, market oriented services at prices generally equal to or below those
charged by its competitors.

In the United States, price competition in the long distance business generally has
increased in intensily over the last five years. The FCC has, on several occasions since
1984, approved of required price decreases by AT&T. Additionally, the FCC's approval of
the ATE&T “price cap” proposal and the filing of AT&T's Tariffs 12 and 15 has intensified
this price competition. Since the Company believes 1nat its service offerings and those of
Its puncipal competitors are priced at or below the prices charged by AT&T for its
felecommunications services, reductions by AT&T in its rates result in similar price
gecreases by the Company and by such competitors. The Company anticipates that the
FCC's apphication of “price cap” regulations to the Bell Operating Companies and other local
exchange carners may similarly intensify pri_e competition but may also have a negative
impact through imposition of higher local access charges. The Company believes that it has
maintained its prices at competitive levels and maintained adequate margins through
aggressive purchasing of its network from i1ts vendors. This has enabled the Company to
maintain an adequate margin even as prices have decreased due to competitive pressures.
See "Regulation™ below, !

The Company faces extensive competition in its three customer divisions for long
distance services, Other long distance carriers offer similar services, and there are a number
of major carners which offer products similar 1o those of the Company. However, not all
long distance carners compete in each product line.

In June, 1895, the United States Senate approved legislation allowing, among other
items. the BOCs to enter the long distance telecommunications market, providing a showing
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by the BOCs of significant competition in the local telephone exchange market. The House
of Representatives is expected to bring a similar bill to the floor for a vote in July, 1995.

Federal Regulation

ATA&T is considered a dominant carrier by the FCC. However, in recent years, the
FCC has substantially reduced its regulation of AT&T's operations. AT&T must file tariffs
for all its services, but the FCC no longer requires AT&T to set service prices 1o achieve a
target rate of return. Instead, most AT&T services are subject to so called "price cap”
regulation. Under price caps, AT&T has substantial flexibility to raise and lower prices
provided that the overall average rates for certain services do not exceed specified levels.
Furthermore, the FCC has permitted AT&T to enter into the tariff individually-negotiated
contracts with customers. This deregulation of AT&T has permitted it to compete more
vigorously with the Company and other long distance carriers. More recently, following
implementation of new 800 service technology in May 1993, the FCC deregulated AT&T
further by reducing oversight of AT&T's BOO service pricing.

As a non-dominant interexchange carrier, the Company is not required to obtain
certificates of public convenience and necessity from the FCC, except that the FCC still
requires non-dominant carriers to obtain authority to provide internationul services. The
Company has authority from the FCC to provide interstate services, international services
and 1o provide international resale service on a worldwide basis. In addition, until recently,
under the FCC's forbearance policy, the Company was not required to file tariffs with the
FCC other than with respect to international services and except for informational tariffs
which must be filed with respect to operator services.

On November 13, 1992, however, the United States Court of Appeals for the District
of Columbia Circuit ruled that the FCC lacks the authority to waive the requirements that
non-dominant carriers file tariffs. In response to the Court of Appeals’ action, the FCC
began a rule making proceeding to decide what standards i1t should apply to tariff filings by
non-dorminant carners and proposed to require minimum tariffing. Meanwhile, non-dominant
carners who previously did not have tariffs o file began to submit them to the FCC. In
those tanffs, carners typically stated their basic service rates but reserved the right to
charge discounts off basic rates to individual customers without expressing those specific
discounts in their tariffs  The FCC rule making notice suggested that such an approach
would be lawful. Only July 7, 1993, however, the Federal District Court in Washington,
D.C. granted AT&T's request for a preliminary injunction ordering MCI to file tariffs
specifying the charges to each MCI customer receiving a discount off standard tariff rates
On July 19, 1993, MCI requested reconsideration of this decision, or alternatively,
clanttication of the order to apply it to all carriers, including the Company. As a result of
these matiers, the Company may be required to file detailed tariffs disclosing discounts
offered to individual customers. The FCC is not expected to begin reviewing non-dominant
carner rates more stringently than in the past. Nevertheless, an obligation to file complete
tarifts as contemplated by the court would be an administrative byrden. A1 this time, the
tull consequences of these developments cannot be determined, but any federal tariff
requirements that would require full tariffing of the Company's pricing ~ould have a material
adverse effect on their operations.

-10-




Page 11 of 45

Separately, in February 1993, AT&T sued MCI, Sprint and WilTel, Inc. for damages
in tederal court based on their failure to file complete tariffs in the past. The court litigation
is still in its preliminary stages. MCI| has asked the FCC for a declaratory ruling that carriers
who did not file tariffs in reliance on the now-invalidated FCC policy will not be liable for
damages. The defendants also are expected to argue that their failure to file tarifts for all
their services, to the extent this was the case, did not cause competitive damages 1o AT&T

in any avent.

Absent an FCC grant of MCI's requested declaratory ruling on either action (the
nature and likelihood of which cannot be predicted at this time), the Company similarly
could be subject to complaints seeking damages filed by any party claiming to be injured by
their past failure to file detailed tariffs (including discounts negotiated with specific
customers) in reliance on the FCC's forbearance policy. The Court of Appeals’ decision
suggests that reliance upon the forbearance policy does not excuse the failure to file tariffs,
because the forbearance policy itself was unlawful. The Court of Appeals’ decision does
not, howaver, require the FCC to assess forfeitures or damages or take any other specific
enforcement action against those carriers who relied upon its policy which was held to be
unlawful, although it does direct the FCC to give further consideration to the issue of
damages in the context of a complaint by AT&T against MCI that was the underlying
subject of the Court's decision. At this time, the Company cannot predict either the
likelihood of the filing of such complaints against it or the likelihooc that such complaints

would prevail in any court proceeding.

In 1984, pursuant to the AT&T Divestiture Decree, AT&T divested its 22 wholly:
owned BOCs. In 1987, as pant of the triennial review of the AT&T Divestiture Decree, the
U.S. Dustnct Court for the District of Columbia denied the BOCs' petition to enter, among
other things, the interLATA long distance telecommunications business. The District Court's
ruling was appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia,
which, on April 3, 1990, affirmed the District Court's decision to retain the interLATA
prohibition for the BOCs. That ruling, however, does not preclude the BOCs obtaining
relaxation or removal of the interLATA prohibition in the future. For example, the RBOCs
have requests pending seeking waivers of the AT&T Divestiture Decree that would permit
them 1o provide mobile and informatior, services on an «nterLATA basis. Similarly, five
RBOCs recently asked the FCC 1o begin a proceeding to establish rules to govern their
provision of interLATA service, explaining that such rules would then support elimi.:ation
of the AT&T Divestiture Decree restrictions. Another RBOC, Ameritech Corporation, has
a similar proposal pending. The BOCs also have sought legislative action to remove the
profbition on interLATA services. If the BOCs ultimately are permitted to provide interLATA
long distance telecommunication services, the Company would likely face substantal
additional competition.

The FCC also regulates the rates for interstate access charges. Access charges of
LECs represent a substantial portion of the overall cost of providing long distance service.
The largest LECs price access under a price cap system similar to the one adopted for
ATET. which allows them substantial latitude to adjust specific access rates. Other LECs
ofter access under more traditional rate of return regulations.

A




Under a provision of the AT&T Divestiture Decree, the divested BOCs ware requ
10 charge AT&T and all other IXCs, including the Company, equal rates on a per-mjr
basis for “local transport”™ service, Local transport S@rvice is the transmission of Swite
long distance traffic for local transport service which has been based upon this "ac
charge per unit” rule since 1983, pursuant 1o the AT&T Divestiture Decreg and the FC
related waivers of s local transport pricing rules. The portion of the AT&T Divestn
Decree containing this rule Ceased to be effective by its terms on September 1, 199 1.t
the FCC has continued to require such pricing since that date while new dccess rules w.
developed in a rule making proceeding.

The FCC has adopted interim access rules, effective fo; dpproximately two ye;
beginning December 1993, under which LECs will offer switched fransport on a capac
as well as a usage, basis, This change may allow IXCs with higher traffic volumes
reduce their switched access costs, while rates for smaller carriers may increase

“Dedicated” Capacity transport ig primarily used by carners trunsponing large volume
of traffic, especially, but not exclusively, ATET, while “tandem-routed” usage transpory |
used by most other IXCs primarily for lower volumes. The Compa..y relies pPredorminantly,
although not exclusively. an tandem-routed transport service faor '"'S access. The FC
@xpects the access cosy differentials faced by large and smaller IXCs under the "interim
rules to be relatively small, but Some preliminary indications suggest that the increases coul
be large enough to have adverse “Ompetitive cansequances for smaller carriers such as 1h
Cumpany. In addition, some parties have féquested raconsideration of the “interim" rules
and rate differentials could increase as a resuyl of this,

The "interim* access rules are scheduled to expire in late 1995, and the FCC has not
vel decided what permanent rules should replace them. If the FCC were to adopt rules

The FCC alsp has trken action to encourage competition for access 58IvVIces by
permitting compeutive dccess providers ("CAPs”") and other parties to interconnect at LEC
central offices. These interconnection developments are still at an early stage. However,
't 15 possible that ATAT could benefit more than other carriers. AT&T's size could permir
it to negotiate substantially lower access charges from either the LECs or the CAPs
depending upon how those charges are regulated.

State Regulation
The Company's intrastate long distance telecommunications operations are subtyect
o vanous state laws and regulations. Most states fequire some form of certification for

Ntrastate telecommunications services, and some fequire filing of tariffs and regulate the
rates for such services. The degree of regulation varies significantly from state to state,
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The Company's intrastate services are subject to the regulatory schemes of the state
regulatory authorities in each of the states in which intrastate services are provided.
Paralleling the reduced level of regulation by the FCC, many of these jurisdictions are
relaxing the regulatory restrictions currently imposed on AT&T and the LECs for intrastate
service. To date the Company generally has not experienced unusual difficulties or delays
in obtaining necessary state authorizations. Some states, however, restrict or condition the
oftering of intraLATA long distance service by the Company and other IXCs. States that
do permit the offering of intraLATA service by IXCs may require that end users desiring to
access these services dial special access codes which put the Company at a disadvantage
compared to LEC intraLATA toll service, which generally requires no similar access code.
In many states, resale carrier certification encompasses the provision of operator services,
while in other states, the issue remains unaddressed or unresolved. Enactment of the 1990
Act materially affected state regulation of Operator Service Providers (companies which
handle and route long distance calls with the assistance of a live operator or an automatic
computer based console} in that uniform consumer notice and information provisions now
generally are applied throughout the country.

The states also regulate LEC access charge arrangements used by IXCs like the
Company for the origination and termination of intrastate calls. As nated above, access
rates represent a substantial portion of the costs of providing long distance services. Some
stales are considering revision of their rules governing intrastate accuss rates similar to the
changes under way at the FCC with respect 1o interstate access suvrvices. A few states
have permitted competitive intrastate access services, and others are likely 1o do so in the
future. The impact of these state regulatory changes on the Company is uncertain at this

Lime

There can be no assurance that the regulatory authorities in one or more of the states
will not take action having an adverse effect an the business or financial condition of the

Company

Employees

As of June 15, 1995, the Company had 68 fui-time employees, including
Michael M. Ross, President and Chief Executive Officer, Marc |. Becker, Execut.ve
Vice President and Secretary, and Dr. Joseph M. Edelman, Vice President and
Treasurer, seven sales and marketing personnel and fifty-eight administrative and
support personnel. None of the Company's employees are represented by a union.

Item 2. Properties.

The Company owns a 4,500 square foot building and leases three floors of a
building located at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, which comprises its
principal offices. The Company maintains its principal offices at 525 Florida Street,
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801. Its telephone number is (504) 343-3125.
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& ]
ltem 3. Legal Proceedings.

There are no pending legal proceedings, and the Company is not aware of any
threatened legal proceedings to which the Company is a party.

At the Company’s annual meeting, held January 13, 1995, three matters were
submitted to a vote of the shareholders of the Company. Shareholders voted to amend the
Articles of Incorporation to divide the Board of Directors into three classes, each of which
will serve for staggered three year terms; four Directors of the Company were elected to
serve: Robert E. Yaw Il, Joseph M. Edelman, M.D., Michael M. Ross, and Marc |. Becker:
and, to amend the Articles of Incorporation to indemnify the Officers, Directors, employees
and agents of the Company as to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or
proceeding pursuant to Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporate Law. In April, 1995
Robert E. Yaw Il resigned from the board. It is anticipated that the next annual meeting of
the shareholders of the Company will be held in January, 1996,
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PART I

(al Principal Market or Markets. Since February 24, 1994, the Company's

Common Stock has traded in the over-the-counter market and listed in the NASDAQ
Small-Cap Market System under the symbol "NTWK". The range of high and low
prices for each quarter of trading through June 15, 1985:

High Low
Fiscal 1995
Fourth Quarter $£9.00 $7.63
Fiscal 1996
First Quarter $9.25 $7.25

On June 15, 1995, the closing price for the Common Stock as repor' d by the
NASDAQ National Market System was $B8.8B per share.

{b) Approximate Number of Holders of Commeon Stock. The number of record

owners of the Company's common stock at June 1, 1995, vas approximately 195.
This does not include shareholders who hold stock in their acccunts at broker/dealers.

{c) Dividends. Holders of common stock are entitled to receive such dividends
as may be declared by the Company's Board of Directors. No dividends have been
paid with respect to the Company's common stock and no dividends are anticipated

to be paid in the foreseeable future.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected consolidated financial data of the Company at and for
gach of the fiscal years in the three-vear period endued March 31, 1995, have been
denved from consolidated financial statements audited by Arthur Andersen L'P for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 1995 and by Faulk & Winkler LLC, independent
certfied public accountants for all prior periods presented. The consolidated financial
statements from which the selected consolidated financial data is derived is qualified
by reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this document.
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Statement of Operations Data:

1395 1994 1333 1392 18991
Operating Results:
Revenues $24,216,948 $10,621,705 $4,509,620 $4,263.284 $3,235.288
Operating Income 461,290 404,361 326,208 145,728 51,386

Income before extraordinary

item and cumulative effect

ol a change in accounting

principle 490,449 206,365 119,113 97,077 40,855
Income before cumulative effect

ol a change in accounting

principle 490,449 206,365 118,113 145,728 61,386
Net Income 490,449 208,365 278,506 145,728 51,386
Preferred dividend requiremant - 31,984 . . :

Earnings per common share:
Incom 1 before extraordinary
wem and cumulative effect of

a change in accounting principle 0.2 $0.11 {0.08 $0.07 $0.02
Income before cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle o.n 0.11 0.08 010 0.03
Net Income o.21 w11 0.19 010 003
Weighted average shares 2,370,999 1,595,840 1.473,9CB 1,474 566 1,474 566
Flﬂﬂﬂl':lﬂ] position:
Total assels $10.156,807 7.60B,164 1,811,859 1,645,253 1,350.742
Long-term debt jexcluding current
matunties) . 43,323 427,483 730,953 517.382
Stockholders investment (delicit) 7103416 6,243,916 369,898 91,383 (b4, 335}
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

asulte o ons For Fiscal Y. 199
General

Over the last three years, the Company's total revenues have grown substantially
Total revenues have increased to $24,216,948 in 1995, as compared to $10.621,705 n
1994, and $4,509,520 in 1993. Operating income has increased to $461,290 in 1995, as
compared to $404,361 in 1994, and $326,208 in 1993. The Company has financed this
growth primarily through cash flow from operations, equity financing, and bank borrowings

Results of Operations

Total revenues, including excise taxes and fees, increased to $24,216,948 in 1995,
from $10,621,705 in 1994, representing a 128% increase. Tota revenues in 1994
increased by 135.5% from $4,508,520 in 1993.

Billable minutes were approximately 152.2 million in 1995, an increase trom
approximately 60.6 million minutes in 1994, and approximately 25.1 milion minutes in
1993. Rate per minute, representing the ratio of totz! revenue 1o total minutes, was
approximately $.159, $.175 and $.180 in fiscal 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectvely. The
decrease in revenue per minute reflects the rate reductions made to remain compeltitive in
the market and wholesale rates provided to switchless resellers. In response to periodic rate
reductions by AT&T and other carriers in prior years, the Company has reduced its rates.
the Company, however, did not matenally adjust its rates in 1995. While these rate
reductions have adversely affected the Company revenues on a per minute basis, billable
minutes have increased by 151.2% over 1994 billable minutes, while billable minutes from
1994 10 1993, increased approximately 141.5%. Historically, AT&T has reduced its rates
when access charges levied by the local telephone companies have been reduced.
Competitors of AT&T then lower rates to maintamn their market positions,

To maintain and improve the Company's competitive future, it may be necessary to
change the Company's rate structure. The Company 1s unable to pred:ct with accuracy
whether or when AT&T or other competitors will implement future rate reductions or the
effect of any such rate reductions on the Company’s profit margins, In the future, these
compelitive price reductlions are anticipated to levael off and prices are expected to siabilize
or decline at a slower rate. While minor price reductions are expected in fiscal year 1996,
the Company anticipates increased revenues to offset the price reductions by the
enhancement of its existing product line to include a nationwide 800 service, competitive
international calling, increased use of its travel card service. planned implementation of
operator services, and other non-switched nationwide products.

in addition to the switch-based network, the Company operates under negotiated

contracts with other carriers to provide a nationwide platform to originate and terminate
traffic. The Company has contracted with marketing companies, switchless resellers and

AT
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agents throughout the United States and provides transport, billing, customer service, and
other support services. Marketing to these types of organizations will continue in the
upcoming fiscal year. Gross margin percentage, defined as the ratio of the excess of
revenues over telecommunication costs, is expected to decrease while billable minutes are
expected to rapidly increase. As of June, 1995, the Company is certified and tariffed 1o
provide service subject to jurisdictions as required in 40 states and the District of Columbia,
with 1 additional states pending, and 7 jurisdictions not requiring certification. The
Company intends to become cenified and tariffed throughout the 48 United States.

The Company and other long distance telecommunications companies are affected
by the FCC's direct regulation of the rates and operations of AT&T and certain other
interexchange carriers with which the Company competes and from which the Company
leases or may lease transmission facilities or may have underlying contracts in place,
Consequently, reductions in the Company’s rate structure, as well as the regulatory matters
affecung the telecommunications industry as a whole, may impact the Company's future
revenues and expenses.

The Company's gross margin percentage in 1995 decreased over the prior year with
the cost of telecommunications services as a percent of revenues increasing 10 B0.4% in
1895, resulting in a gross margin percentage of 19.6%. In 1994, telecommunications costs
were 76.0% of revenues, resulting in a gross margin percentage of 24.0%. The Company's
costs for telecommunications services as a percent of revenue in 15993 were 58.8%, which
resulted in a gross margin percentage of 41.2%. The rapd growth in sales of the
Company's wholesale product to switchless resellers decreases the gross margin because
the gross margin from sales to switchless resellers is less than that realized by the

Company's retail sales.

General and administrative and selling expenses were $3,979,257 representing
16.4% of revenues, $1,951,992 representing 18.4% of revenues, and $1,369,658
representing 30.4% of revenues for the years ended March 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993,
respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense was $298,700 representing 1.2% of
revenues, $189,923 representing 1.8% of revenues, and $160,810 representing 3.6% of
revenues for the years ended March 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993, respectvely.

(ther Income

Operating income was $461,290 representing 1.9% of revenue for the year ended
1985 Operating income was $321,320 representing 3.0% of revenues for the year ended
1934, For the year ended March 31, 1994, a preferred dividend requirement of $31,984
resulted in net income of $206,365. Operating income was $326,208 representing 7.2%
of revenue for the fiscal year ended 1993,

Interest income in 1995 was $147,902, pnmanly from investing the proceeds of the
Company’'s secandary public offering in short term agreements to resell. !nlerest expense
in prior years, $83,041 in 1994 and $140,924 in 1993, was recognized mainly from the
tinancing of the Company’s switching equipment.
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Income Taxes

A charge of $118,743 was attributed to income taxes for 1995 resulting in net
income of $490,449. As of March 31, 1995, the Company has fully used a federal income
tax net operating loss carryforward realized in prior tax years. For the year ended March 31,
1994, $114,955 was attributed to income tax resulting in net income of $206,365.

In 1993, the Company implemented Financial Accounting Standard 1089, "Accounting
for Income Taxes”, resulting in a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for
income taxes of $169,393. Therefore, a net income result for the period ende2 1993, was

$278,506.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operations for 1995, was $670,124, an increase from ne1
cash used by operations of $352,871 in 1994, and net cash provided * - operations of
§353,170 in 1993,

In March 1994, the Company completed a public offering of 1,380,000 shares of
common stock at $5.00 per share. The common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Small Cap
Market System under the symbol "NTWK". The net proceeds of the offering, after
deducting applicable issuance costs and expenses were approximately §5,700,000. The
proceeds were used to reduce short-term and long-term indeb:edness and for general
corporate purposes, including the financing of working capital needs, capital expenditures,
redemption of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, and, redemption of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, acquisitions, network upgrades, and the expansion or improvement of
olfice tacilities.

Cash flows used in operations resulted in a negative impact on cash, vsith net income
of 206,365 in 1994 due primarily to the impact of growth in accounts receivable that were
not offset by increases in accounts payable and customer deposits.

The Company's accounts receivable are anticipated to continue to grow due to higher
sales volume. Growth will require cash disbursements for installation costs on lines and
equipment to expand networking capability. In addiuon, the growth will require cash
payments to vendors prior to receipt of payments by its customers.

The Company's growth will also require continued expansion of tne telacommu-
nications equipment and related capital items. The Company used net cash of 485,237,
$4.661.221 and $104,998 for investing activities for the years 1995, 1994, and 1993,
respectively. The primary use of cash in 1995, was for the acquisition of customer bases
resulting in an increase of intangible assets of $110,853 and related acquisition cOStS of
$1,781,055. Another significant use of cash was related to acquisition of telecommunica-
tion equipment and related capital items of $1,344,567 in 1995, $207,746 in 1994, and
80,998 in 1993.
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Cash used in financing activities was $151.117 in 1995, and cash provided by
financing activities was $5,122,904 in 1994, while cash used by financing activites was
$155,667 in 1993. In 1995, the Company redeemed all of its outstanding preferred stock
for $55,527, made payments against costs of the secondary public offering of $53,585,
and reduced debt principa' by $42,005. In 1994, the Company made principal payments
on long-term borrowings of $544,749 and received cash of $6,900,000 for issuance of
common stock, and $300,000 for issuance of redeemable preferred stock. The Company
redeemed the preferred stock for $300,000, paid preferred stock dividends of $31,984, and
paid costs associated with stock offerings of $1,200,363 in 1994, In 1993, the Company
had proceeds of $196,032 from issuance of capital stock, and made payments on long-term
borrowings of $351,699.

The Company experienced a net cash increase of $33,770 in 1995, $108.812 in
1994, and $92,505 in 1993. Stockholders’ equity was $7,103,415, and $6,243,916 as
of March 31, 1995, and 1994, respectively.

In 1995 the Company completed a series of acquisitions of the customer bases and
associated accounts receivable for cash, shares of the Company’'s commo~ stock of o
combination, thereof. The greater Las Vegas customer base and related accounts receivable
of Colorado River Communications was purchased in November, 1994, for $1.741,977 in
cash and 29,038 shares of common stock, which had a value on the issue date of
$232.129. In December, 1994, the Company acquired WNestover Communications
Corporation’s customer base and related accounts receivabe for a purchase price of

$63.090.

The Company maintains a revolving bank line of credit of $3,000 000. In May,
1995, $900,000 was drawn from this line 1o finance operations.

Fiii B FiENGaLS i Siiinl o

Please see pages F-1 through F-16.
| 9. I : | Di With A Nacamitl |
Fi ial Disc} ‘

Arthur Andersen LLP was selected in March 1995, to replace Faulk & Winkler
LLC as the Company’s principal independent public accountants and performed the
Company's audit for the year ended March 31, 1995, The decision to dismiss Faulk
& Winkler LLC was recommended by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
and was approved by the Board of Directors. This decision was not based on any
disagreement with Faulk & Winkler LLC on any matter of accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, which
disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Faulk & Winkler LLC, would have
caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection
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with its report. Faulk & Winkler LLC's report did not contain an adverse or a
disclaimer of opinion for neither the Company’s fiscal year ended March 31, 1894,

nor March 31, 1993,
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PART HI
ltem_10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The Directors and Officers of the Company as of March 31, 1995, were as
follows:

Tenure as Officer

Name Age Position or Director
Michael M. Ross 37 President, Chief From December 19, 1890
Executive Officer, to date

and a Director

Marc |. Becke- 37 Executive Vice President, From December 19, 1990
Chief Operating Officer, to date
and a Director

Joseph M. Edelman 74 Vice President and From December 19, 19380
a Director to date

Mark V. Weisse 44 Vice President and Chief From July 6, 1994
Financial Officer to date

S. Dawvid Rosenfeld 35 Vice President and Director From July 6, 1994
of Sales to date

Michael M. Ross. Mr. Ross has been a Director and President of M.M. Rcss,
Inc.. since 1979, and a Director and Officer of the Company since December 19,
1990. Mr. Ross is a former Director of Telecom Management, Inc. (January, 1984
to August, 1986) and Direct Communications, Inc. (October, 1985 until it was
merged with Network in 1990). Mr. Ross 1s responsible for the day-to-day
management of all marketing and executive activities for the Company, anc serves
as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer.

Marc |. Becker. Mr. Becker has been a Director and Secretary-Treasurer of
M M Ross. Inc. since its formation in 1979, and a Director, Treasurer and Secretary
of the Company since December 19, 1990. Part of that ime, he was a Director of
Telecom Management, Inc. and a past Director of Direct Communicaynns, Inc.
(October, 1985 until it was merged with Network in 1990). Mr. Becker s
responsible for the day-to-day operational functions, and serves as the Company's
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer.
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Joseph M. Edelman, M.D, Dr. Edelman has been a Director and Vice President

of M.M. Ross. Inc. since 1981, and a Director and Officer of the Company since
December 19, 1990. Dr. Edelman is responsible for the computer hardware and
networking technologies for the Company. Dr. Edelman serves as the Company’'s

Treasurer.

Mark V. Weisse. Dr. Weisse serves as Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer. He is currently responsible for the Personnel, Accounting, and Finance
departments, including regulatory compliance functions. Dr. Weisse joined the
company in January, 1994, He began his career in telecommunications in 1970 with
New England Telephone Company where he performed the divestiture analyses and
accounting for New England Telephone's AT&T capital assets until 1983, In 1984,
Dr. Weisse was promoted to the finance organization in Bell Communications
Research, Inc. (Bellcore). He also served as Vice President of Finance for the Furst
Group, Inc., a long distance telecommunications company.

S. David Rosenfeld. Mr. Rosenfeld has been involved with Network Long
Distance since 1981. He previously served as Operations Manager overseeing all
administrative, sales, technical and customer service functions of the Cempany. He
currently serves as Director of Sales, responsible for all sales activities, includi g day-
to-day sales and sales functions, service plan design, market development,
sssociation and independent agent programs and training.

The Officers of the Company are elected by the Board of Directors at the first
meeung after each annual meeting of the Company's shareholders, and hold office
until their death, or until they shall resign or have been removed from office. The
date of the next annual meeting of the Company will be determined by the
Company's Board of Directors in accordance with Delaware law. Such meeting is

expected 1o be held in January, 1996.

The Company anticipates appointing two additional directors during the upcoming
fiscal year.
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ltem 11, Executive Compensation.

The following table sets forth all compensation paid or accrued by the
Company for services of Michael M. Ross and S. David Rosenfeld during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1995 and the two prior fiscal years. No other officer has
received cash payments in excess of $10J,000.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Otficer

Long Term Compensation
Annual Compeansation Awards Pay-
outs
fal ) fed fd} fe) f fg! ih) il
Crher Ar I
Name Annual Rastricted Lme Other
and Compen- Stock Optians/ Pay- Compen
Principal Salary Bonus sation Award(sl SARs outs salion
Position Year(1) 8 1) f8)2) %) L4 &) 8NN3
5. David 18995 $45,067 ¥ o $§75,807 $2.800 -0- NA $3.383
Rosenfeld, 1994 §44,.500 $ o $£34.087 . £3.192
Vice President 1993 $43,200 $ o § 9453 £1.914
and Director of
Sales [
|
Michael M 1995 $594.846 ] o £2.316 MNiA -0 N/A £8.822 |
Ross, 1994 $81.213 ) a $2,422 . $7.685 |
President and 1983 568,313 H o $£3.226 £6.879
Chief
Execulive

_— . - = =

i1 Pariods presented are for the years ended March 31.

{2l Inciudes a $500 monthly credit less insurance ana sales commissions.

i3 Reprasants amployer contributions for insurance, disability and a car allowance

i) The following officers’ compensation are anticipated in excess of §100,000 for the fiscal yoar
19596:

Michael M. Ross. President and Chiel Executive Officer
Marc /. Becker, Executive Vice President and Chiel Operating Officer
5. David Rosenfeld, Vice President and Director of Sales
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Compensation of Directors

The non-employee directors of the Company will receive $100 for each meeting
they attend plus expenses.

Options and Warrants

The Company issued to its principal underwriting firm, Barron Chase Securities,
Inc. on February 24, 1994, warrants to purchase 120,000 shares of the Company's
Common Stock for & five (5) year period for $7.50 per share.

Employment Agreements

In January 1, 1994 the Company entered into employment agreements with
Michael M. Ross and Marc |. Becker, Officers and Directors of the Company. The
employment agreements extend to December 31, 1997 and provide for a 1 inimum
annual salary of $96,000 to each individual. A discretionary bonus may be p=id to
either individual based on factors deemed relevant Ly the Board ot Direclors, such as
the Company's performance and/or other objective critena.
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Option Grants in 1995
The following table sets forth certain information regarding options to purchase

shares of Common Stock granted to the Executive Officers of the Company listed in
the Executive Compensation Table during the Company’s 1995 fiscal year:

Option Grants in 1995

(al (B) ] (d) (el
% of Total
Options
Granted to
Options Employees Exercise Exprraton
Mame Granted in1995 Puce Date
Michae! M. Ross None MN/A MN/A N/A

Aggregate Options Exercised in 1995 and Option Values at March 31, 1995

The following table sets forth certain information regarding options to purchase
shares of Common Stock exercised during the Company's 1995 fiscal year and the
number and value of exercisable and unexercisable options to purchase shares of
Common Stock held as of the end of the Company's 1995 fiscal year by the
Executive Officers of the Company named in the Summary Conipensation Table:

Aggregated Options Exercised in 1995
and Option Values at March 31, 1995

al (b} (ch (di (el
Value of
Number of Unexer-

Unexercised In-the-Money

crsed
Opuons at  Options at
03/31/95 0313195
Shares Acquired Exercisable/ Exercisable/ Exercisable
Michael M Ross 0 0 0/0 $0/80

RA Value realized is equal to the ditference between the fair market value per share of Commeon Stock
on the date of exercise and the option exercise price per share multiplied by the number of shares

acquired upon exercise of an option.

1 Value of pxercisable/unexercisablo in-the monay options s equal to the dilference between the tau
market value per share of Common Stock at March 31, 1995 and the option exercise pnce per
share multiphed by the number of shares subject to options.

.26-




e

A Gaciiiv'0 hin. of Catikin Bansficial O | M _

The following table sets forth, as of March 31, 1995, the stock ownership of
each person known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of five percent ar
more of the Company's Common Stock, each Officer and Director individually and all

Directors and Officers of the Company as a group:

Amount and

Naine and Address Nature of Benge- Percent
of Benehcial Owner ticial Qwnershig of Class
Michael M. Ross 600,691(1) 20.64%
525 Flonda Straat
Baton Rouge, LA 70801
Marc |. Becker 610,691(2 20.98%
525 Florida Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70801
Jaseph M. Edelman, M.D. 10,000 .

525 Florida Street

Baton Rouge, LA 70801

S. Dawid Rosenteld 9133

525 Flonda Street

Baton Houge, LA 70801

Mark V. Weisse 4] .

525 Flonda Street

Baton Rouge, LA 70801

All Directors and 1 230,51513) 42.27%
Dthicers as a Group

{4 Persans)

*Less than 1%

RN Includes 600,691 shares held directly and beneficially.

(2} Includes 610,691 shares held directly and beneficially. Also includes his wife's

ownership of 10,000 shares of the company’s Common Stock.

{3) Includes 1,230,515 shares held directly and beneficially by Messrs. Ross and
Becker and 10,000 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Becker's wife,
10,000 shares of common stock owned directly and beneficially by Dr.
Edelman, and 9,133 shares of common stock owned directly and beneficially

by Mr. Rosenfald.
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Messrs. Ross and Becker, Officers and Directors of the Company, owe
to the Company in the amount of $146,500, $146,500 and $134,500, as principal.
as of March 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993 respectively. The amounts represent
advances to these individuals from the Company, which are unsecured, and bear
interest at B% Interest income with respect to these notes for 1995, 1994, and
1993 was $11,720, $11,240, and $9,800, respectively.

The amount of $125,000 in long-term debt was owed to Becker Edelman
Investment Partnership whose owners are Marc Becker and Joseph Edelman, both
Officers and Directors of the Company, as of March 31, 1993. The note was
renewed on April 30, 1993 and was paid in full in March 1994,

Michael Ross and Marc Becker have entered into an agreement with the
Company and its escrow agent whereby approximately 60% of their shares are to be
released over a period of time based upon certain objective performance levels. In
order for the shares to be released, the Company's net income per share on a fully
diluted basis, as defined in the agreement, must be as follows:

Fiscal MNet Income Per Share Amount of Shares to
year-End (Fully-Di R

March 31, 1995 5.375 per share 208.897 shares
March 31, 1996 §0.60 per share 208.857 shares
March 31, 1997 §1.00 per share 208,897 shares

If in any of those years the Company achieves the following years' earnings
levels, all prior years shares and the additional shares for such earnings level will be
released. The escrow agreement terminates on January 27, 2000.

In the event the Company is acquired or merged into another entity prior to
March 31, 1997, at a price equivalent to at least $10 per share, all of the escrowed
shares shall be released from e.crow. Alternauvely, in the event the Company is
acquired or merged into another entity prior to March 31, 1997, at a price equivalent
of less than $10 per share, all of the escrowed shares sull remaining in 1he escrow
account at the time of any such acquisition or merger shall be forfeited ana all such
shares shall be placed in the Company's treasury for cancellation thereof as a
contribution to capital.

The staff of the Securities Exchange Commission may view the placement of
shares in escrow similar to a recapitalization by management. The agreement to
release shares upon the achievement of certain objective criteria is presumed to be
a separate compensatory arrangement between the Company and management. The
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(a) 3. Exhibits: None.
(b)  Current report on Form B-K, dated March 15,1995, reporting under item 4, a

change in independent public accountants from Faulk & Winkler LLC to Arthur
Andersen LLP.
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PORT OF INDEP EN BLIC ACC T

To the Stockholders of
Network Long Distance, Inc.;

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Network

Long Distance, Inc,, (a Delaware co c:raliun’) and subsidiaries as of March 31,
1995, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
upinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The financial
statements of Network Long Distance, Inc., as of March 31, 1984 and for the
years ended March 31, 1994 and 1993, were audited by other auditors whose
report dated June 3, 1994, expressed an unqualified opinion »n those
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally acce pted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles usea and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Network Long Distance, Inc., and
subsidiaries as of March 31, 1995, and the resu'*s of their operations and their
cash flows for the year then enued in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles.
Aé'éHéR ANDERSEN LLP

Jackson, Mississippi,
June 2, 1895




NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. AND

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE S TS

ASSETS

Currenl Assels

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities purchased under agreement to resell

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $499,546 and $284,724 at March 31,
1995 and 1984, respectively

Deferred income tax asset

Other current assels

Total current assels

Property and Equipment
Land
Building and improvements
Telecommunications equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Less i ccumulated depreciation

Intangibles, net
Other Assels

Tolal assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued lelecommunications cost
Other accrued habilities
Customer deposils
Total current habilities

Deferred income tax liability
Commitments

Senes A convertibie preferred stock - $.01 par value,
25,000,000 shares authorized: no shares issued
and oulstanding at March 31, 1995 and E2.011
shares 1ssued and oulstanding at March 311954
(redemption value $3 per share)

Stockholders’ Equity

Common stock - $.0001 par value: 10,000,000 shares
authonzed, 2,992,106 and 2,899,566 shares issued

and outstanding at March 31, 1995 and 1994,
respectively
Additional paid-in capial
Retained earnings
Total stockholders' equity

Total habilties and stockholders’ equity
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March 31

1995 1994

$ 348,753 § 314,983
1,558,562 4,309,800
4,123,954 1,787,870

42,231 21,590
37,801 23,221
1T, 6,457,484
75,000 75.000
382,315 291,835
1,640,315 903,889
671,640 154,028
2768270 1424757
968,766 750,386
1,800,504 T 674,366
1,883,997 82 .31
381,005 394,103

$ 10,156,807 § __ 7,608,164

3 871,893 62.281
1,481,409 642,200

500,428 234,217
183,185 136,185
_ 3,036,915 1,074,862

16.476 43323

246,033
299 290
6,483,025 6,113,983

620092 129,643

__1.103416 6,243,016

The accnmﬁanymg notes are an integral pan

of t

F-3

ese financial stalements.

7,608,164

$_10,156,807 § 7,608,164
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‘WORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. . SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the year ended March 31,

1995 1994 1993
Revenues (including excise taxes of
$218,833, $148,112, and $120,810in
1995, 1994, and 1593, respectively) $ 24216948 $ 10,621,705 $ 4509520
Operaling expenses.
Telecommunications costs 19,477,701 8,075,429 2,652,844
Selling, general and administrative 3,978,257 1,951,992 1,369,658
Depreciation and amortization 298,700 189,923 160,810
Total 23,755,658 10,217,344 4,183,312
Operating iIncome 461,290 404,361 326,208
Interest (income) expense, net ~(147,902) 83,041 140,924
Income before income laxes 609,192 321,320 185,284
Provision for income taxes 118,743 114,955 66,171
Income before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle 490,449 206,365 119,113
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
159,393

for income taxes - - ST -
Net Income 490,449 206,365 278,506

Preferred dividend requirement E B 31,984 -
Net income applicable to common

stockholders $§_ 490449 S 174,381 $ __ 278,506
Earnings per common share.
Iincome before change in accounting

principle 3 021 8§ 011 § 008
Change in accounting pnnciple - - G.i1
Net income $ 021 5 011§ 019

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements
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c@JOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF cMl FLows

For the year ended March 31,
1995 1994 1993

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 490449 § 206365 § 278,506

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 218,430 155,139 150,810
Amortization 80,270 34,784 10,000
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 386,214 236,000 108,362
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes (47,487) 114,955 (93,222)
Provision for employee stock incentive plan 42,350 - -

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of
effect of business combinations:

Accounts receivable (2,357,721) (1,570,924) (149,493)
Other current assets (14,580) 47,197 (95,660)
Account payable and other current

liabilities 1,914,678 332,338 112,167

Other . (42479) 91275 - 31,700

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 670,124 (352,871) 383,170

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures (1,344,567) (207,7486) (80,998)
Sale (purchase) of short-term investments, net 2,751,238 (4.309,800) -
Acquisitions and related costs (1,781,055) - -
Increase in intangible assels (110,853) - -

Other m . (143,675) (24,000)

Nel cash used in investing activities (485,237)  (4,661,221) (104,998)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Pnncipal payments on deb! (42,005) (544,749) (351,699)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 6,900,000 196,032
Proceeds from sale of redeemable preferred stock . 300,000 -
Redemption of preferred stock '55,527) (300,000) -
Dividends on preferred stock - (31,984) -
Offenng costs (53,585) _(1.200.383) -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (151,117) 5122804  (155,667)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 33,770 108,812 92,505
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 314,983 206,171 113,666

Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod $§ 348753 $ 314,983 § 206,171

The accompanying notes are an integral par
of these financial statements.
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NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 1995

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Description of business

Network Long Distance, Inc. (a Delaware corporation), through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, M.M. Ross, Inc., and Network Advanced Services, Inc., provides long
distance and other telecommunications services for wholesale and retail customers
Hereafter, Network Long Distance, Inc and subsidiaries are referred to as the

Company.

In March 1994, the Company issued via a public offering, 1,380,000 shares of
common stock at $5.00 per share. The net proceeds of the offering, after deducting
applicable issuance costs and expenses, were approximately $5,700,000 The
proceeds were used to reduce short-term and long-term irdebtedness and for
general corporate purposes, including the financing of woiking capital needs,
capital expenditures, redemption of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and

acquisiions.
Principles of consolidation

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation

Securities purchased under agreement to resell

The Company invests excess funds in short-term. Interest-oearing ocbligations. Due
lo the short-term nature of these in.estments, the Company does not take
possession of the securities which are held in safekeeping

The Company does not enter into hedge and/or other transactions to limit the risk
of loss that may result from a decline in marke! value of the underlying assets in the
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event of default by the counterparty. However, the counterparty sells the Company
securities with a market value in excess of the funds invested.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable represent amounts due on monthly billings for long distance
and other telecommunications costs incurred by customers.

A provision for doubtful accounts is made tq maintain an adequate allowance to
cover anticipated losses based upon management's evaluation of the collectibility
of accounts receivable. Charge-offs during the fiscal years 1995, 1994, and 1993
were $171,392, $31,276, and $91,219, respectively.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided for financial
reporting purposes using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Building 30 years
Building improvements 7-10 years
Telecommunications equipment 5-7 years
Office equipment 5-7 years

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Replacements and
betterments are capitalized. The cost and related ‘eserves of assets sold or retired
are removed from the property accounts, and any resuliing gain or loss is reflected
in results of operations.

Intangible assets

The major classes of intangible assels are summarized below

Amortization March 31,
—Period 1995 1994
Customer acquisition cost 10 $1.649377 & —
Other intangibles 1-40 337,674 105.015
1,987,051 105,015
Less accumulated amortization (103.054) (22.784)

$1.883,997 $_82231
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Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method for the periods noted
above.

Customer acquisition costs represent costs incurred as a result of purchased
customer bases and are recorded based upon the estimated value of the customer
bases acquired. (See Note 2)

Other intangibles consist primarily of software development costs attributable to
telecommunications service activities and intangibles attributable to immaterial

acquisitions.

Realization of acquisition-related intangibles is periodically assessed by
management of the Company based on current and expected future profitability and
the cash flows attributable to the acquired customer bases and their contribution to
the overall operations of the Company.

Income taxes

In 1983, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No
108, "Accounting for Income Taxes," which requires recognition of deferred tax
assels and liabilities for the expected fulure tax consequences of events that have
been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method.
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between
the financial statement and tax bases of assets ard liabilities using enacted tax
rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to revarse

Recognition of Revenue

Customer long distance calls are routed through switching centers owned by the
Company or others over long distance telephone lines provided by others. The
Company records revenues at the time of customer usage primarily on u measured

time basis
Telecommunications expense
Telecommunications expense includes all payments o local exchange carriers and

interexchange carriers primarily for access and transport charges. The Company
mainly utilizes long-term fixed cost contracts with other carriers in order to carry

customer calls.
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Eamings per share

For the years ended March 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, earmings per share are
calculated based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period plus the dilutive effect of stock options and warrants determined using the
treasury method. Average common shares and common equivalent shares utilized
were 2,370,999; 1,595,840, and 1,473,908, respectively for primary and fully diluted
eamings per share for the years ended March 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993

Dividends of $31,984 for the year ended March 31, 1994 on convenrtible preferred
stock were deducted from net income to determine net income available to common
stockholders for earmnings per share computations.

Stock Warrants

The Company issued stock warrants to its underwriters in connection with its March
1994 public stock offering which allows the purchase of 120,070 shares of common
stock at $7.50 per share The warrants expire in March 19399

Common Stock Escrow Agreement

As part of its public offering of common stock in March 1994 (See Note 1) the
Company transferred 626,691 shares of common stock, owned by officers, into an
escrow account. The common stock will be released from escrow in three annual
increments of 208,897 shares if the Company meets earnings per share
requirements, on a fully diluted basis as defined in the agreement The stipulated
earnings per share (EPS) amounts are as follows:

March 31 EPS
1895 $ 375
1996 60
1997 100

If the Company fails to meet EPS requirements of the escrow agreement, the
common stock held in escrow will be forfeited and canceled to the Company's
treasury. However, if the Company meets the EPS requirement in the second or
third fiscal year, any shares forfeited in a prior year(s) will be considered earned
and released lo the officers in the subsequent year If the EPS requirements are




attained, the appropriate compensation expense will be recorded by the Company

The escrow agreement terminates on January 27, 2000 These shares have
been excluded from the weighted average number of shares oulstanding for the

year ended March 31, 1995.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash on hand and on deposit are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Reclassifications

Certain itemns for 1994 and 1993 have been reclassified to conform with the 15385
presentation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In 1992, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 112 "Employers’ Accounling for
Postemployment Benefits." This statement was adopted in the year ended March
31,1995, Adoption of this statement does not have a material effect on the financial
posilion or results of operations of the Company

In 1994, FASB issued SFAS No. 119 "Disclosure about Derivative Financial
Instruments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments. * The Company does not hold
or issue any derivative financial instruments.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In 1991, the FASB issued SFAS No. 107 "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments." This statement is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15,
1895 In 1993, the FASB issued SFAS No. 114 "Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan" and SFAS No. 116 "Accounting for Contributions Received
and Contributions Made." In 1994, the FASB issued SFAS No. 118 "Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures " These
statements are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1984 In
1995, the FASB issued SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of.” This statement is effective
for years beginning after December 15, 1995. Management believes that adoption
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of these standards will not have a material effect on the company's consolidated
results of operations or financial position.

NOTE 2 - CUSTOMER BASE ACQUISITIONS

The Company has completed a series of acquisitions of segments of other lorg
distance providers' customer bases. Such acquisitions have been accomplished
through the purchase of the customer base and related accounts receivable for
cash, shares of the Company's common stock or @ combination thereof All
acquisitions have been accounted for as purchases and resulted in an excess of
the purchase price over the net tangible assets acquired.

The table below sets forth information concerning the customer base acquisitions
by the Company:

Shares Issued Allocation of Inlangibles Acquired
Acquired Entity aszg;;m Cash Number Value CustomerBase Otherintangibles

First Choice Mar 1994 § 131675 - S - $§ 76,289 s -
MNetwork (FCN)

Colorado River Nov 1984 1,741,977 29,038 232,128 1,561,968 122 481
Comm. (CRC)

Westover Comm. Dec 1994 63,050 - = 11,120 -
Corp. (WCC)

The initial purchase price allocations for the fiscal rear 1995 acquisitions were
based on estimates as the Company is waiting for more detailed information
concerning the current values of certain assets and liabilities. As a result, the final
purchase price allocations may differ from the presented estimates

To identify the intangibles acquired in these purchases, the Company employs a
series of projections of the acquired customer bases. These projections utilize cash
flow models and historic and projected attrition rates to quantify the values 2llccated
to the various acquired intangibles and the related useful lives. Management
believes such projections are achievable based on the current results of the
Company's operations.
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NOTE 3 - INCOME TAXES

Effective April 1, 1992, the Company adopted SFAS No. 109 “"Accountr=—
Income Taxes." The cumulative effect of this change in accounting princips =
an increase in net income of $159,393.

The provision for income taxes is composed of the following:

1995 1994 1993
Current $166230 § - $159,393
Deferred —(47.487) _114935 _(93.222
Total provision for income taxes $118743 $114955 § 66171

The following is a reconciliation of the actual provisions for income taxes :-—
expecled amounts which are derived by applying the statutory rate to rez—=

pretax income.
1995 1994 1993

I=xpected statutory amount $207,125 $112,462 $ 59,898
Usage of net operating loss

carryforwards (75,4089) - -
Effect of officer's life insurance (9,652) 1,632 832
Other (3.321) 861 5.441
Actual tax provision $118.743  $114955 § 66171

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of tempo ary differences bei—=

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose: =
amounts used for income tax purposes.

The following is a summary of the significant components of the Comz=
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 1995 and 1994

_March 31
1995 1994
Assets Liabilities  Assels Liabilite

Allowance for bad debts $ 96 806 $ - $ - $ -
Depreciation - 52,680 - 43,320
Effect of conversion to

cash basis for income

lax purposes - 118,986 - 244 B
NOL carryforwards - -- 266,273 --
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Accrued habilities 100,850 - - -
Other 900 _1.335 =13 Y
Total $198.556  $172.801 $266.446  $288.179

NOTE 4 - NOTES PAYABLE

Al March 31, 1995, the Company had a $3,000,000 line-of-credit with a bank, none
of which was outstanding at year-end. Borrowings under the line-of-credit mature
on July 31, 1895, and bear interest at 1.25% above the prime rate (10.25% at
March 31, 1995). The line-of-credit is secured by certain accounts recewvable of the
Company and requires compliance with certain financial and operating covenants
At March 31, 1995, the Company was in compliance with those covenanis

At March 31, 1994, the Company had a note payable of $42,005 secured by
equipment and the personal guarantee of a major stockholder. The note payable.
which bore interest at 16%, matured and was repaid in January 1935

NOTE 5 - REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

At March 31, 1994, the Company had 82,011 shares outstanding of Seres A
Convertible Preferred Stock with a value of $246,)33 The preferred stock paid
cumulative dividends at an annual rate of 12% liased on a $3 i1ssue price per
share

During fiscal year 1995, the Company redeemed all outstanding Series A
Convertible Stock for 63,502 shares of the Company’s common stock and cash
payments of $55527

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company issued 50,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock during
1994 for proceeds of $300,000 The Company utilized $300,000 of the public
offering proceeds to redeem the Senes B Convertible Preferred Stock Each
purchaser of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock received one share of common
stock upon redemplion
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NOTE 6 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

In May 1994, the Company adopted a stock incentive plan (the Plan) under which
certain employees are eligible to receive 100 shares of the Company's common
stock upon completion of their first anniversary of service. All shares issued under
the Plan are held by the Company for a period of three years from the issue date,
at which time the employee vests if they are still employed with the Company. In
the event the Company is sold, all employees vest immediately. At March 31, 1995,
approximately 17 600 shares of common stock had been awarded under the Plan
Compensation expense of $42 350 was recognized in 1995 related to the Plan

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS

At March 31, 1995, the Company was committed under noncarcellable,
noncapitalizable agreements for fixed cost transmission facilities that require
minimum payments of approximately $7,220,000 in 1996, $7,500,000 in 1997,
$3,450,000 in 1998 and $525,000 in 1999

The Company leases office facilities and certain equipment under noncancellable
operating leases having initial or remaining terms of more than one year. Rent
expense related to these leases was approximately $4,400, for the year ended
March 31, 1995. Minimum lease payments under these operating leases are
$173,507, $212,447, $253,637, $259,951, and $266,941, for the years ended
March 31, 1996 through 2000, respectively.

Certain of the Company's facilily leases include renewal options and all leases
include prowvisions for rent escalation to reflect increased operating costs and/or
require the Company to pay certain maintenance and utility costs.

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company held notes receivable and related accrued interest from various
employees of $187,751 and $176,031 as of March 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively
These notes, which are unsecured, bear interest at B%

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

interest paid by the Company during the years ended March 31, 1995, 1994 and
1993 amounted to $2,648, $105,900, and $188,700, respectively. Income taxes
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paid during the year ended March 31, 1995 was $25,000 No income taxes were
paid or refunds received during the years ended March 31, 1994 and 1993

For the year ended March 31, 1995, noncash transactions included the issuance
of common stock in connection with customer base acquisitions and the redemption
of preferred stock of $232,129 and $190,506, respectively.

NOTE 10 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Two of the Company's switchless customers accounted for approximately 27% of
net sales in 1995 and approximately 28% of gross accounts receivable at March 31,
1995. The Company performs initial and ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts. Customers may be
asked lo provide personal guarantees and/or security deposits. If the financial
condition and operations of these switchless customers deteriorate below critical
levels, the Company's operating results could be adversely affected

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to March 31, 1995, the Company has purchased sel cted customer
bases and related accounts receivable from various switchless resellers In April
1995, the Company purchased a segment of the customer base and related
accounts receivable from Prime Telecom, Inc for cash of approximately $10,000
and forgiveness of $47,000 owed the Company. Tre customer base acquired s
located primarily in San Antonio, Texas.

In May 1995, the Company purchased a portion of the customer base and related
accounts receivable of Network Services, Inc for cash of approximately $565,000
and common stock of $55,000 The customer base acquired is located in

Dklahoma
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Secunities Exchange
Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC.

Dated: June 28, 1995 By

Michael M. Ross, Fresident

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Company and
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Capacity Date
W{lﬁﬂﬁ) President, Chief June 28, 1995
Michael M. Ross Executive Officer,

und Director

Executive Vice President, June 2B, 1995
Secretary, Chief

Operating Officer, and

Director

Treasurer, Vice June 28, 1995
President, and Director







BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

STATE OF FLORIDA

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY

FOR NETWORK LONG DISTANCE, INC. - man
TO ACQUIRE CERTAIN ASSETS OF CASE NUMBER ¢ (0 7S1-Tr
UNIVERSAL NETWORK SERVICES

OF FLORIDA, INC.

\PPLICATION

Network Long Distance, Inc. (“Network™), pursuant to the applicable Statutes of Flonda and
the € ymmission's Rules and Regulations currently in effect and/or subsequently enacted, hereby
requests Commission approval of a transaction whereby Network will acquire certain assets,
including customer accounts, of Universal Network Services of Florida. Inc. ("UNS"). Network
proposes to acquire these assets and customer accounts and to begin to provide long distance service
10 the Customers of UNS under the Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity previousy
issued to Network.

As will be described in detail below, Network has entered into an agreement to purchase
specified assets of UNS, including its customer accounts, pending the required regulatory approvals :
Commission approval of the proposed prrehase of assets. © cluding customer accounts, W ill result
i cost savings because of iscounts on quantity ordering of matenials and services and will
reamline the level of service for all involved customers, At the same time, approval of the proposed

purchase and ransfer of customer accounts will not in any way be detrimental to the public interests

! Both Network and UNS are presently certificated carmiers in the State of Flonda, actively engaged
i the business of selling long distance and other enhanced telecommunications scrvices
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o the State of Florda because the customers of both Network and UNS will continue to receive the
i Tl guabity service presently rendered to them and neither party 1o the tansaction between
Network and UNS will be given undue advantage over the other party. Additionally, Network will
possess a greater customer account base as the result of the proposed purchase of assets, and will
thus be a stronger carrier 1o provide high quality service to all customers presently serviced by both
Nerwork and LINS,
In support of this Application, Applicant shows the following:
I. THE PARTIES

1 Network Long Distance, Inc. is a publicly held Delaware corporation whose principle
oftices are located at 525 Florida Street, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70801. Network is a non-dominant
carrier that resells the domestic and international long distance service purchased from various
facilitics based carniers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies.

2 Network 1s authorized by the FCC 1o offer domestic interstate and international
sersives i all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carrier. Nt twork
currently onginates interstate traffic in forty nine (49) states, and provides intrastate service, pursuant
to certification, registration or tanff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, 1n forty nine (49)
JLates Network 18 a certificated camier in the State of Flonda’

3 I niversal Network Services of Florida, Inc_ is a privately held Nevada corporation
whase prnciple offices are located at Two Corporate Plaza, Suite 200, New, ort Beach. California

Genll NS 1s a non-dominant carmier that resells domestic and international long distance service

L In Elorida, Network provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant to Certificate of
Public Convenence and MNecessity Number 3178, See maner entitled “Application Form for Authority to Provide
Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of Flonda,” Docket Number 930249-TI; Order Number
I'SC-95-0857-FOk- 11, eflective date June 30, 1993
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from varous facilitics based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier policies. LINS 1
+ certtiicated carrier in the State of Florida, ’
4 Pursuant to the transaction which is the subject of this Application, Network will
acquire, for consideration, certain of the assets of UNS, including the customer accounts of UNS
5 Pursuant to the transactior. which is the subject of this Application, UNS wall retain
its Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 1ssued 1o 1t from the State of Flonda
fa As a company providing intrastate telecommunications service directly in forty nine
(49) states, with annual operating revenues of approximately thirty two million ($32,000,000)
doltars, Network is well-qualified to consummate the transaction which s the subject of this
\pplication. Current financial information for Network is attached hereto as Exhibit "B )
II. DESIGNATED CONTACT
7 The designated contact for questions concerning this Application 1s
l.eon L. Nowalsky, Esquire
Nowalsky & Bronston
3900 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1275

Metairie, Louisiana 70002
{(504) B32-1984

’ Universal Network Services of Florida, Inc 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Universal Network
Services, Inc | also a Nevada corporation. In Flonida, UNS provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant
10 Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity Number 3578 See matter entitled "Application Form for
Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service Within the State of Florida,” Docket Number
94559 11, Order Number PSC-94-1032, effective date September 14, 1994

‘ See Asset Purchase Agreement, attached as Exhibit “A”

% Fxhibit “B* 15 the most recent Form 10-K submitted to the SEC by Network for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 1995
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B Copies of such correspondence should also be sent to.

Mike Ross, President
Network Long Distance, Inc.
525 Flonda Street

Baton Rouge, Lowsiana 70801
(504) 343-3125

Il. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION FOR THE
PURCHASE OF ASSETS FROM UNS TO NETWORK

9 In the past several years, Network has acquired the assets of several companies that

provide intrastate telecommunication services pursuant to Certificates of Public Convenience and

Necessily in various states. Network has attempted to consolidate the customer accounts of these

various other companies in order to create a single, larger long distance carmier operating in all fifty

{50} states and the District of Columbia. By virtue of these transactions, Network will realize

significant economic, marketing and administrative efficiencies

10 Applicant accordingly proposes a transaction with UNS whereby Network will

purchase the following assets of UNS:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

All Qualified Customer Accounts (as such term is described in Exhubit "A”"),
including all customer lists, mailing lists, books, records, files. data, letters
of agency and similar items related to the Qualified Customer Accounts,

All accounts receivable associated with and denved from the Qualified
Customer Accounts and other mutually agreed to accounts receivable,

All of UNS' righus under any agreenients, application forms, term contracts,
letters of agency and all other contructual instruments related to the Qualified
Customer Accounts, including, but not limited to UNS' nght to as-ert claims
and take other rightful action with respect to breaches, defaults and other
violations of such Customer Contracts;

All customer and other deposits held or made by UNS related to the Qualified
Customer Accounts; and

All T-1's and other equipment, excluding dialers, currently used by or for the
customers relative to the Qualified Customer Accounts.
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11 Due cnns&nltnn will be made by Network to UNS in exchange for the purchise of
those assets identufied above. ®

12 All assets of UNS not identified in paragraph 11 above will be retained by and remain
the property of UNS, including the Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity issued by the
State of Florida.

13 Following consummation of the transaction discussed above, Network will transter
all of the present customer accounts of UNS to Network, and service these customers through and
pursuant 1o the Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity presently utilhized by Network i ity
service of its existing customers in this state.”

4. The technical, managerial and financial personnel of Network will remain the same
after the transaction, and will serve both the existing Network customers and the transferred UNS
customers with the high level of expertise which now collectively operates this national corporation

IV. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS

15 Critical to the proposed transaction and consolidation of customer accounts is the
need to ensure the continuation of high quality service to all customers currently served by both
Network and UNS. The proposed transaction will serve the public interest for the following reasons

16 First, it will enable Network to provide a streamlined level of service for all involved

customers by creating a single, larger, national operation to provide long distance service to the

- Mote that the exact financial figures have been deleted from Exhibit "A™ Should this Commussion
desire 1o review the financial terms of the proposed transaction, such matenials will be provided to this Commission
fur e cumera inspeclion

Upon consummation of the proposed transaction, Network intends to notify all current end users of
LINS ol the event and also of any change in rates due to the alignment of two or more different rate products into a
single rate product for common services, by either a separate mailing or by a bill insert. To the extent that any
present UNS rate products are not included in Network's Taniffs, Network will amend its Tanfls accordingly. As
such, the transaction should not cause any inconvenience or confusion to the pre-existing customers of either UNS or

Network
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customers in ths state as well as other states. The transaction will r:guncc the operating efficiencies,
including market efficiencies, of Network.

17 Second, it will increase the appeal to present and potential customers because of
Network's larger size and greater variety of service offerings as well as enhance the ability of
Network to appeal to and serve national accounts.

¥ Finally, 1t will result in cost savings because of discounts on quantity ordering of
matentals and services.

19 Accordingly, the requested transaction and consolidation will serve to create 4
heightened level of operating efficiency which gencrally will serve to enhance the overall capacity
of Network to compete in the marketplace and to provide telecommunications services for a greater

number of Florida customers at competitive rates.

Page -6-




20 WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Applicant respectfully requests that the

V. CONCLUSION

Commission authorize Network and UNS to consummate the agreement described above, and to
transfer the customer accounts presently serviced under UNS' Certificate to Network, to be serviced

under Network's Certificate

DATED this (§¥aday of _ J wwe 1996

Respectfully submitted,

Lo Virwrotsting

Leon L. Nowalsky, Esquire
Nowalsky & Bronston

3900 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1275

Metaine, Louisiana 70002
(504) 832-1984
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Assetl Purchase Agreement.

Form 10-K Submitied to the

Secunties and Exchange Commission

by Network Long Distance, Inc.

for the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 1995 .
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STATE OF LOUISIANA

PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE

VERIFICATION

I, Michael M. Ross, am the President of Network Long Distance, Inc., and am authonized to
make this verification on its behalf. The statements made in the foregoing Application are true of my
own knowledge, except as to those matters which are therein stated on information and belief, and
as 1o those matters | believe them to be true.

I;} '.' w L[ " 4
Name: Michael M. Hu(;
Title: Presidem

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and Parish named
above, this _31 day of May, 1996

GQapprd. [fithoed

MNotary Public

My commuission is 1ssued for life.
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